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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. We were originally scheduled to be in the

          4  other room but to the urgencies of 421-A and my

          5  interest in that bill, that room is already filled,

          6  but we're going to proceed accordingly here. I am

          7  Leroy Comrie, Chair of the Consumer Affairs

          8  Committee. I'd like to welcome my colleagues that

          9  are here today, Council Member Jim Gennaro from

         10  Queens, Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

         11  Bronx, Council Member Alan Gerson from Manhattan.

         12                 I want to thank Brian Sogol and

         13  Thomas Ferrugia, my Legislative Counsel and Policy

         14  Analyst, and all of the people that have been

         15  helping shape this third public hearing concerning

         16  the pedicab industry.

         17                 We have previously reviewed

         18  Introductory Bill 75 on February 28th and May 11th

         19  of this year. In addition to further consideration

         20  of Intro Bill 75-A, a revised version of Intro. 75,

         21  the Committee will also review proposed Intro. Bill

         22  331-A introduced at the request of the Mayor to

         23  regulate the pedicab industry.

         24                 We look forward to hearing from the

         25  witnesses who are here today to discuss the
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          2  legislation.

          3                 Over the past ten years, pedicabs

          4  have developed from a primarily tourist-based

          5  industry, into a method of transportation for New

          6  York residents.

          7                 While no concrete statistics are yet

          8  available on the number of pedicabs operating in the

          9  City, most estimates exceed 250. Many consumers

         10  prefer pedicabs because of their unique nature and

         11  many environmentally conscious residents applaud

         12  their clean operation. Further, their size enables

         13  pedicabs to move through traffic and often outpace

         14  automobiles in heavily congested areas.

         15                 However, accidents are inevitable

         16  given the crowded condition of the City's streets.

         17  Despite the potential dangers associated with the

         18  operation, pedicabs are unregulated locally. Since

         19  liability coverage is not mandated, an estimated

         20  half of pedicabs do not carry liability insurance in

         21  case of an accident.

         22                 Further, the City would like to

         23  ensure that pedicabs were safely maintained and

         24  their operators are well versed in State and local

         25  traffic regulations. Proposed Intro. Bill 75-A and
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          2  331-A would authorize the Department of Consumer

          3  Affairs to license all pedicabs that operate within

          4  the City.

          5                 While both bills have similar

          6  intentions, the proposals contain elements that

          7  substantially distinguish the manner in which the

          8  bill's aims would be accomplished.

          9                 For example, Intro 331-A requires

         10  among other things that each pedicab would be no

         11  more than 55 inches wide or ten-feet long, have

         12  certain safety equipment, and a sign indicating the

         13  name and telephone number of the pedicab business,

         14  the pedicab registration number and a phone number

         15  for consumer complaints, as well as a sign

         16  indicating customer rates.

         17                 Intro 75 would license the individual

         18  pedicabs and the pedicab drivers, while Intro. 331

         19  would license the pedicab drivers and the pedicab

         20  business or company.

         21                 In both cases the individual pedicab

         22  would receive a license plate or sticker to affix to

         23  the cab.

         24                 Intro. 75-A would require that each

         25  pedicab carry an insurance policy specific to the
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          2  individual cab, while Intro. 331-A would require

          3  that the business carry an umbrella insurance policy

          4  for the cab or cabs operating under the corporate

          5  license.

          6                 Intro. 75-A requires that DCA, in

          7  conjunction with the Department of Transportation

          8  offer a training program and written examination for

          9  pedicab driver, while Intro. 331-A does not require

         10  such an exam. Instead, a pedicab driver would only

         11  be required to show a valid State driver's license.

         12                 Intro. 331-A would require that the

         13  pedicab business maintain records relating to the

         14  ownership of its pedicabs.

         15                 Moreover, Intro. 331-A would require

         16  each pedicab business to provide the Commissioner of

         17  DCA with an accident report within 24 hours of any

         18  such occurrence.

         19                 Intro. 331-A would expressly ban

         20  conference bikes from operating on any City street

         21  and preclude the operation of a pedicab in any park

         22  without authorization from the Department of Parks.

         23                 Intro. 75-A would provide that the

         24  maximum number of pedicabs licensed in the City not

         25  exceed 300, as well as prohibit any individual from
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          2  possessing more than 30 pedicab licenses.

          3                 Under certain circumstances both

          4  bills would permit the seizure of a pedicab. Today

          5  the Committee expects to hear from the

          6  Administration and will continue to work with the

          7  Mayor's Office to fashion a uniformed piece of

          8  legislation.

          9                 The Committee will also hear

         10  testimony from industry representatives and other

         11  interested parties.

         12                 Before we begin, I would like to

         13  acknowledge the prime sponsor of Intro. 75-A,

         14  Council Member Alan Gerson, who is joining us this

         15  afternoon. And if you could please turn your cell

         16  phones off and pagers and other devices that may

         17  make noise, and we can move forward.

         18                 Council Member Gerson, would you like

         19  to speak on the proposals before we hear from the

         20  Administration?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         22  much, Mr. Chair. I'll just be very brief, both in

         23  order to allow the hearing to proceed and also

         24  because I need to beg your indulgence and that of

         25  the witnesses, I need to shuttle back and forth
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          2  between this hearing and one next door, which is

          3  conducting a hearing on another piece of legislation

          4  on which I'm the prime sponsor relating to the 421-A

          5  affordable housing revisions.

          6                 But, Mr. Chair, this is important. I

          7  recognize this is, I believe, our third hearing on

          8  this. I just want to reiterate the goals of Intro.

          9  75 remain my goals and I believe our Council goals,

         10  and that is to go forward with just the minimum

         11  amount of necessary government regulation to achieve

         12  the objectives of assuring safety, of avoiding or

         13  minimizing traffic congestion and assuring the

         14  availability of insurance in those situations where

         15  accidents might happen.

         16                 Of course, again, our overriding goal

         17  is to assure the safety of passengers, of drivers

         18  and of passer-byers, pedestrian passer-byers and

         19  those in vehicles. I appreciate the engagement of

         20  the Administration on this issue. I think we are

         21  moving in a constructive direction with proposed

         22  changes in the intros. I hope that following the

         23  testimony at this hearing, we'll be able to, and I'm

         24  optimistic that following the testimony at this

         25  hearing, Mr. Chair, with your leadership, we will be
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          2  able to reach closure on a bill jointly with the

          3  Administration which will achieve those objectives

          4  which I outlined and, of course, by doing so will

          5  facilitate and accommodate the development of this

          6  exciting new mode of transportation and relatively

          7  new, it gets older as we conduct more and more

          8  hearings, this relatively new transportation and

          9  business development. I'll just conclude by noting

         10  it's our job in government to assure health and

         11  safety and basic needs and welfare and within that

         12  context to allow the private sector and new

         13  entrepreneurs to implement their creativity and

         14  ingenuity in our City. That's always been our

         15  strength, and with that public/private partnership

         16  in this area I know we will go forward and achieve a

         17  new and exciting dimension to our transportation

         18  system and network and infrastructure.

         19                 So, again, I conclude where I began,

         20  Chair Comrie. I thank my colleagues on this

         21  Committee and I thank you especially for your

         22  thoroughness and leadership in this, and I look

         23  forward to the results of this hearing, and to

         24  voting on this in the very, very, very near future.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right. I look

          3  forward to voting on it also.

          4                 I just wanted to mention before we

          5  started that I didn't mention in my testimony that

          6  we're also here today to request of the industry

          7  that, you know, from the first two hearings, the

          8  industry clearly has understood the need for

          9  regulation so that they can have a set of standards.

         10  Clearly it's the development of the set of standards

         11  that's the sticking point. So, that's where we are

         12  today.

         13                 We are honored to be joined by both

         14  Commissioner Iris Weinshall from the Department of

         15  Transportation and Commissioner Jonathan Mintz from

         16  the Department of Consumer Affairs, and we'll hear

         17  testimony from whomever would like to start first.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Good afternoon,

         19  Chairman Comrie, members of the Consumer Affairs

         20  Committee and staff. I'm Jonathan Mintz, the

         21  Commissioner of the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         22  I appreciate the opportunity to appear before all

         23  you again, along with my colleague, Transportation

         24  Commissioner Iris Weinshall, to testify about the

         25  two bills before us to regulate pedicabs in New York
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          2  City, and to reiterate the Administration's support

          3  for Intro. 331-A. I would first, however, like to

          4  commend all of you and Councilman Gerson, in

          5  particular, for taking the initiative to place this

          6  issue of regulating pedicabs before us. I want to

          7  express my appreciation for the time and effort you

          8  all have put into this, and your staffs, I think the

          9  results will show that all of that time has been

         10  time well spent.

         11                 As I noted at our last hearing,

         12  Intro. 331 was built upon and reflected general

         13  agreement with Councilman Gerson's original proposal

         14  addressing, as he said, the public health, safety

         15  and transportation issues attendant to the

         16  transportation of passengers for hire on City

         17  streets by pedicabs.

         18                 I'm pleased to note that this general

         19  agreement and the need for the creation of a

         20  regulatory framework that would serve as the

         21  foundation for future growth and development of the

         22  industry, continues to be reflected in both bills.

         23                 I should also reiterate, as did you,

         24  Chairman, that this developing tourist-friendly

         25  industry needs to be commended for coming forward
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          2  and actually seeking to be regulated, in order both

          3  to legitimize itself and to lock in best practices

          4  that they hold dear.

          5                 We've had very productive

          6  discussions, and cordial discussions with members of

          7  the industry as we have crafted, the revisions that

          8  are incorporated into 331-A, and of course, we have

          9  also sought input from and spoken with other

         10  affected parties, including those concerned about

         11  public safety issues.

         12                 The revisions that are now included

         13  in the A print of our bill have further refined the

         14  important public safety requirements to be achieved,

         15  without, we believe, unduly burdening the industry

         16  with regulations, a value just expressed by you all

         17  as well.

         18                 While the two bills adopted very

         19  similar approaches to regulating the industry, as

         20  you noted, there are a number of significant

         21  differences which I'm completely convinced can be

         22  readily resolved.

         23                 Just for purposes of future

         24  discussion to get them on the table, I would note

         25  that one difference is that Intro. 331-A requires
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          2  the licensing of anyone engaging in the business of

          3  providing pedicab services, rather than licensing

          4  just the driver and the cab itself.

          5                 Experience shows that effective

          6  regulation requires that the entities engaged in the

          7  business of providing the service should be licensed

          8  because they're the ones that can have the control

          9  and can be held accountable for the conduct of the

         10  service and the rest of the business.

         11                 Another difference is that Intro.

         12  331-A requires a business to obtain a liability

         13  policy with an aggregate limit of a million dollars,

         14  while Intro. 75-A calls for coverage of lower

         15  amounts but on a per cab basis.

         16                 Perhaps the optimum solution may be

         17  to combine these two options, by allowing the

         18  business to choose which type of coverage it will

         19  obtain. Thus, a small company would be able to

         20  license on a per cab basis, insure on a per cab

         21  basis perhaps, while a company with a larger fleet

         22  might go for the overall liability policy with the

         23  aggregate cap.

         24                 Another difference is that Intro.

         25  75-A would set a specific cap on the number of
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          2  pedicabs that could be licensed. While Intro. 331-A

          3  seeks to put in place a mechanism for implementing a

          4  cap should it prove to be a concern in the future.

          5                 This being a developing industry, it

          6  seems to us premature to lock in the number of cabs

          7  that could be licensed.

          8                 On the whole both bills are moving in

          9  the same direction toward creating a sound

         10  regulatory framework for this developing industry.

         11  Unlike other industries, it transport passengers for

         12  hire, it's currently not regulated, it's not subject

         13  to the regulations and protections you mentioned,

         14  and so we look forward to instituting those

         15  safeguards to this framework.

         16                 Let me conclude by saying that I'm

         17  convinced that together we have come a long way

         18  toward crafting a bill that will harmonize what

         19  could be potentially conflicting interests and

         20  objectives, and I'm sure we can do that. I believe

         21  the Administration bill establishes the kind of

         22  standards which will protect the safety and the

         23  consumers create that solid foundation for growth.

         24                 I'm also confident, as you are

         25  hopeful, that we can put the finishing touches on
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          2  the final product soon so that it can be enacted at

          3  the earliest possible time and we look forwarding to

          4  working with you to do so.

          5                 Following my fellow Commissioner's

          6  testimony, I look forward to answering any of your

          7  questions.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good

          9  afternoon. I'm Iris Weinshall, Commissioner of the

         10  New York City Department of Transportation. I'm

         11  pleased to have the opportunity to be here again

         12  today with Commissioner Mintz to testify in support

         13  of the Administration's bill, proposed Intro. 331-A

         14  and commend Chairman Comrie, this Committee and

         15  Councilman Gerson, for continuing to make the

         16  regulation of pedicabs the priority.

         17                 As I stated at the last hearing, I am

         18  pleased that the Administration and Council are in

         19  agreement on the need to establish a regulatory

         20  framework for pedicabs.

         21                 As Commissioner Mintz pointed out, we

         22  have since been working diligently and

         23  collaboratively with the Council in establishing

         24  such a framework, and while further discussions are

         25  still needed, we're very pleased with the progress
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          2  we're making.

          3                 The introduction and rise in number

          4  of pedicabs over the years has made the need for

          5  regulatory framework all that more important.

          6                 DOT is tasked with the balancing the

          7  many users of our streets, while at the same time

          8  allowing for commerce. This is becoming increasingly

          9  challenging as our shared space as become

         10  increasingly more and more complex.

         11                 From DOT's perspective, it's most

         12  important that all of the users of our shared space,

         13  and the regulatory framework is an important first

         14  step. As I noted at the last hearing, it is

         15  disconcerting that New Yorkers and tourists are

         16  riding in these devices without oversight in place -

         17  non-inspected devices that may not have been proper

         18  -- may not have proper safety equipment or

         19  insurance.

         20                 The Administration's bill, proposed

         21  Intro. 331-A holds both pedicab businesses and their

         22  individual drivers accountable for operating safely

         23  by requiring both to be licensed.

         24                 The bill also requires that pedicab

         25  businesses obtain sufficient insurance coverage to
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          2  protect passengers and the public financially for

          3  any injuries that may occur.

          4                 It also requires each pedicab to be

          5  inspected and to possess specific safety equipment,

          6  including seatbelts, a secondary or emergency brake

          7  system, battery-operated headlights and tail lights,

          8  an audible signaling device and reflectors on the

          9  spokes of a pedicab's wheels.

         10                 To further enhance safety, the bill

         11  also includes operating restrictions, where by among

         12  other things, a pedicab cannot transport more than

         13  three people, be operated while a passenger is

         14  standing, be operated on a bridge or tunnel, nor be

         15  operated if the driver's ability is impaired by

         16  alcohol or drugs.

         17                 Drivers must also hold a valid motor

         18  vehicle driver's license and must adhere to all

         19  traffic rules and regulations.

         20                 Lastly, as I've noted previously, the

         21  Administration's bill also bans multi-passenger

         22  wheel devices known as "party bikes," from the

         23  City's streets.

         24                 Party bikes jeopardize all uses of

         25  our shared space, and have no place on our
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          2  heavily-utilized and congested streets.

          3                 Let me conclude by saying that we're

          4  confident that proposed intro 331-A provides a

          5  comprehensive framework that will allow DCA to

          6  effectively license and regulate pedicabs.

          7                 This regulatory scheme will ensure

          8  that these businesses continue to operate, prosper

          9  and continue to add to the character of the City,

         10  while at the same time, doing so in a safe and

         11  responsible manner.

         12                 This will enhance not only the safety

         13  of pedicab operators and their consumers, but also

         14  the many other users of our roadways.

         15                 As I stated earlier, clearly the

         16  Administration and the Council are on the same page

         17  in agreeing that a regulatory framework is needed.

         18  Given this, I hope we can work together quickly to

         19  resolve the few outstanding issues and finalize this

         20  legislation as soon as possible. We need to take

         21  advantage of this opportunity now, which will go a

         22  long way towards enhancing the safety of all New

         23  Yorkers.

         24                 At this time, Councilman Mintz (sic)

         25  and I are happy to answer any questions that you may
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          2  have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

          4  by Council Member Liu from Queens. Council Member

          5  Gennaro.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. And nice to see you both,

          8  Commissioners, here.

          9                 Yes, I'll kind of pick up where I

         10  left off on last hearing, which is it is far from

         11  clear to me that these pedicabs can ever be made

         12  safe. And before I get into that, let me just jump

         13  into something in a moment, but in the briefing

         14  paper, in the Council's opening statement, there was

         15  reference to people who have a sense of the

         16  environment, who wish, you know, clean

         17  transportation, you know, might be drawn to these

         18  vehicles, and as Chairman of the Committee on

         19  Environmental Protection, I'm here to say that

         20  these, from my perspective, are not environmentally

         21  conscious vehicles, do not add anything to the

         22  environment. Instead, I think they cause more

         23  congestion, and in fact more air pollution, in that

         24  if one were to only -- the only way these could have

         25  a positive effect on the air quality in New York
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          2  City, if we are displacing other vehicles, in other

          3  words, taxis and other cars are being taken off the

          4  road by the presence of the pedicab, then you would

          5  have, let's say, a plus for clean air. But no

          6  taxicabs are staying home because there are pedicabs

          7  on the road, no buses are staying in the garages,

          8  nobody is not driving as a result of pedicabs. So,

          9  pedicabs, by definition, don't remove any pollutants

         10  from the air, and arguably almost by definition are

         11  creating more congestion just by virtue of their

         12  presence.

         13                 So, one of the things I want to do

         14  today is just to dispel the notion that this is some

         15  plus for the environment.

         16                 I continue to be an advocate for

         17  clean green taxis, which we just negotiated some

         18  clean taxi bills. The Mayor very forward thinking,

         19  advanced the 254, you know, clean air medallions,

         20  and we're taking every step possible to move towards

         21  a clean, green taxi fleet, but we also have to be

         22  safe. So, I just want to put that on the record,

         23  that if people want clean environmentally

         24  responsible transportation, they should use a hybrid

         25  sort of clean-air taxi, and I don't believe that
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          2  these can be, so I don't believe these are a plus in

          3  the environment. I want to put that on the record,

          4  and I want to ask you why you don't believe that

          5  these are a problem for traffic congestion, as I do.

          6  It's a lot of talk these days about, you know,

          7  congestion pricing, and what can we do to free up

          8  Midtown, and what could we do, should we do pricing,

          9  should we do this, should we do that, but I want to

         10  know why it is that there is not even a cap in the

         11  bill that would limit the amount of pedicabs? So,

         12  how much congestion are we willing to put up with?

         13                 So, let me stop there and let you

         14  respond.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, I think

         16  pedicabs sort of add to the flavor of the City of

         17  New York. They offer an alternative to people who

         18  would not necessarily maybe want to take a cab or

         19  maybe they feel tired and they don't want to walk or

         20  the bus is crowded and they don't want to get on a

         21  bus. We believe that there is room on our

         22  streetscape for multiple forms of transportation.

         23  The same way that we encourage and that we are

         24  enhancing our bike network in the City, we would

         25  like to encourage other modes of transportation.
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          2                 We believe that there is somewhere

          3  between three- and four-hundred pedicabs. Until we

          4  regulate the industry, we're not going to know

          5  exactly how many are on the street. So, the

          6  Administration's view is that we think that and we

          7  believe that pedicabs enhance the flavor and the

          8  sustainability, and the getting around the City, but

          9  we would like to see stricter regulations on the

         10  industry as a whole.

         11                 Our concern from DOT's viewpoint is

         12  safety, safety for those who go in the pedicabs, as

         13  well as safety for all citizens who walk on and

         14  drive on the streets.

         15                 Let me just say that the one area

         16  that we do feel very strongly has to do with the

         17  party bikes, because they take up the full width of

         18  a traffic --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Full

         20  agreement. Full agreement. You could pass over that

         21  part because I'm with you on that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: But we

         23  believe that this is a great City and there is room

         24  for everything, and all we're saying is that

         25  pedicabs should be allowed on the street, but they
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          2  should be regulated in a responsible manner.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But that

          4  presumes the notion that by adding licensure and by

          5  adding tail lights and stickers and brakes, what

          6  you're really creating is another street hail taxi

          7  fleet. And we have an operating street hail taxi

          8  fleet, and with motors. With motors. So, we've got

          9  this fleet of motorized vehicles. Last time I

         10  looked, I thought that the only motorized vehicle

         11  allowed to take street hails was yellow cabs, and

         12  people are using these for basic point-to-point

         13  transportation, and while I'm willing to consider

         14  the sort of flavor of the City position, I mean that

         15  would be more meaningful if there was a discrete

         16  role sort of created for these vehicles that were

         17  for touristy, for your touristy kind of things, or

         18  tours, that kind of thing, but people are using them

         19  for basic transportation.

         20                 If you walk out of American Girl on

         21  Fifth Avenue and 49th Street, as I do with my

         22  daughter all the time, and we are besieged by

         23  pedicabs that, you know, "Where do you want to go?"

         24  "Where do you want to go?" "Where do you want to

         25  go?" It's nothing about, let me show you the City,
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          2  let me take you here, let me show you some of the

          3  sights. It's basic street hails. And I continue to

          4  -- I continue to be surprised at the love affair

          5  that has developed between this City and this

          6  Council with this unregulated industry.

          7                 I will of course agree with you in

          8  that having them in their current state where

          9  they're completely unregulated, that they charge

         10  whatever they want, they do whatever they want, you

         11  know, completely, completely below the radar is

         12  unacceptable. But I think the notion that we can

         13  have a serious discussion about these things, if

         14  we're not limiting the number, if we're not limiting

         15  the places where they can go, if we're not limiting

         16  them on motors, if we're not doing this in such a

         17  way that we're undercutting the other taxi

         18  industries that are out there, I just don't think

         19  we're at the point where we're having a real serious

         20  discussion about this, because I don't think 331

         21  comes anywhere near like where we need to be.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Councilman,

         23  the great thing about New York is that there are

         24  different modes for different people in terms of

         25  what they want to be able to use. Some people like
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          2  to bicycle ride everywhere, some people like me

          3  would prefer to walk everywhere, and some people

          4  would prefer to get into cabs and there are other

          5  people who don't want to get into cabs, who sort of

          6  have that closed-in feeling, you know, the expense

          7  of a cab, and then there are pedicabs, which are a

          8  little bit more festive and you get to see the City

          9  in a different perspective than you would see it in

         10  a cab, or by walking or on a bike.

         11                 I believe that the Administration's

         12  bill would by rule allow us to limit them, or no,

         13  not at all?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes, there is a

         15  provision in the Administration's proposal that

         16  would allow for --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I'm familiar

         18  with it. But go ahead.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes, should that

         20  become a problem. And I think the idea is that you

         21  should wait and see the impact of --

         22                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: How many

         23  there are.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: How many there

         25  are and the impact of legislation. You know, when
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          2  you listed the various mechanisms within the

          3  statute, that might lead to safer conduct, or

          4  conduct about which we're more comfortable, you left

          5  one thing out, which I think is the major thing,

          6  which is the license itself. And I think that having

          7  a license and wanting to maintain that license in

          8  order to operate is a powerful influence, as the

          9  industry itself recognizes in making sure that

         10  they're engaged in behavior that is safe and fair.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But this all,

         12  again, at the end of the day, you know, we as the

         13  people who are going to put forward policies and

         14  procedures, people have an expectation that we're

         15  going to provide, you know, safe transport for

         16  folks, and I just don't see how with the numbers of

         17  pedicabs that are already on the street, causing

         18  congestion and causing, in my view, problems for

         19  someone who walks the streets of Manhattan and is

         20  besieged by them, and see them go into traffic with

         21  little kids, and this is just an accident waiting to

         22  happen, and it just -- I don't -- I just don't agree

         23  that this is a basic sound means of transport.

         24  People want to get on a bicycle, they want to ride a

         25  bicycle, they're totally responsible for the two
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          2  wheels that are beneath them and they have to

          3  operate it and they should know what they're doing,

          4  and people come here from the mid-west, get into a

          5  pedicab, and they have some sense that this driver

          6  can handle it, he can negotiate traffic and they go

          7  out into traffic and we're all going to be back here

          8  some day after the first huge catastrophic multiple

          9  death, you know, a pedicab situation, we're all

         10  going to be back here saying why didn't we think

         11  about this on December 11th. You know, I'm saying --

         12  is it the 11th today? It is the 11th today, okay.

         13  So, I just want to put that on the table that these

         14  vehicles I believe are inherently unsafe when mixed

         15  with congestion, Midtown traffic, add that to what I

         16  believe are, you know, negative impacts on

         17  congestion and pollution because added congestion

         18  and detrimental impacts on the taxi industry which

         19  we are trying to make cleaner and greener and, you

         20  know, to me this is a loser. And I would be in favor

         21  of the most strictest restrictions that we can

         22  possibly conceive of for the safety of people who

         23  would ride them, and for the vitality of industries

         24  that I believe are being gored by these devices.

         25  There you have it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I just want to

          6  state for the record that in my opening statement I

          7  said perception, I didn't talk about reality, but

          8  people do perceive and their perceptions and

          9  people's -- you can't stop people from taking a

         10  vehicle, all right? I come from Southeast Queens

         11  where the van industry was created out of need that

         12  came from the bus strike back in '80, and we've been

         13  unable to stop people from taking the vehicles. You

         14  get people to stop, how are you going to stop a

         15  person that comes in from the Midwest or Amsterdam

         16  or Southwest or somewhere else from getting on a

         17  vehicle? I think this is about recognizing that

         18  people are utilizing the product and that we need to

         19  regulate the product. Whether or not it's

         20  environmentally sound, I'm not the environmentalist

         21  in the room, you're the Chair of the Committee, I'm

         22  going to leave that to you, you know, but I think

         23  that people's perception that they're an

         24  environmental vehicle is out there, and I don't know

         25  that this Committee could be the Committee to erase
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          2  that perception.

          3                 With that, we'll go to Council Member

          4  Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. I would associate myself with the

          7  Chair's remarks, as far as Chair Gennaro, and I

          8  respect his view on this. And let me follow-up on

          9  this just quickly. Do you have any accident

         10  statistics on the pedicabs right now?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I believe

         12  that the Police Department, when they break down the

         13  numbers, do not distinguish those as pedicabs, but

         14  they distinguish them as bicycle accidents. So, no,

         15  the answer is that we do not have any data on

         16  pedicabs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: One thing I

         18  would ask of you, Mr. Chairman, and I would ask of

         19  you, Commissioner, and I think the Police Department

         20  is maybe represented here, I would ask that we get

         21  some statistics, that we immediately get statistics,

         22  because I think that Council Member Gennaro's

         23  concerns can be evaluated or should be evaluated in

         24  terms of reality.

         25                 I mean, it certainly seems to me like
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          2  these may be dangerous, but maybe they're not. My

          3  perception may be wrong in that regard. And I'm not

          4  saying that there won't be some accidents. Obviously

          5  there will be some accidents, there are,

          6  unfortunately, accidents with bicycles. My wife had

          7  a reasonably serious bicycle accident within the

          8  last couple of months.

          9                 So, I'm not saying we should allow a

         10  few accidents to deter us, I don't believe that. But

         11  if there are large numbers of accidents, that might

         12  turn me in Jim Gennaro's direction. So, I think we

         13  ought to know that.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Let me just

         15  point out, Councilman, that under this bill pedicabs

         16  would be required to be licensed, and they would

         17  possess a registration plate, and therefore the

         18  Police Department would then be able to track

         19  pedicab incidents and accidents separately.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, but I

         21  think they should try and do it now. I realize that

         22  -- I agree it would help to have a license, but

         23  right now, if the Police Commissioner mandates that

         24  pedicab accidents be specifically identified, I

         25  think that that could be done. We might miss a few,
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          2  but I think we should do it, I really think.

          3                 And Mr. Chairman, I would propose

          4  that we ask today, if the Police Department is here

          5  today. If they're not, I would ask. And I would ask

          6  you, Commissioner, to consult with your fellow

          7  leaders of that Department to try and give us some

          8  statistics on this ASAP.

          9                 I mean, I think if we did a study

         10  even for a couple of months we would learn

         11  something, and I think we ought to do that.

         12                 I mean, most of them operate in a

         13  limited number of precincts, when I was talking

         14  about most of the Bronx, I haven't seen many in the

         15  Bronx. And I don't know how many are in Brooklyn.

         16  Most of them are in Manhattan in the 42nd Street

         17  area, I see a lot of them there.

         18                 So, I think we could get those

         19  statistics pretty quickly, and I think if we had a

         20  survey, and if the survey showed there were very few

         21  accidents, which I think the industry

         22  representatives have told us in the past, that would

         23  be important to me.

         24                 One issue that now is beginning to

         25  puzzle me a little bit or concern me is this idea of
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          2  electric-assisted pedicabs. I frankly, until very

          3  recently, didn't realize there were

          4  electric-assisted pedicabs, but I gather that there

          5  are and they may be becoming more common; how do you

          6  deal with that in your legislation?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Actually, we

          8  don't.

          9                 Our bill defines a pedicab, it's a

         10  bicycle as defined by the State's Vehicle and

         11  Traffic Law, and that it must be propelled by human

         12  power. So, an electric- or a power-assisted pedicab

         13  would not be allowed under the Administration's

         14  bill.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just notice

         16  we have a submission here that at least the person

         17  making the submission suggests that there's federal

         18  and State legislation that indicates that certain

         19  electric vehicles are considered bicycles. I don't

         20  know if that's true or not, it seems to say that

         21  here, but I read it quickly.

         22                 Do you know that issue?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Commissioner

         24  Weinshall is right, that the legislation currently

         25  would not allow for non-pedal-powered pedicabs, and
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          2  we were also recently made aware of a new product on

          3  the market, we haven't heard much about it yet, but

          4  the current approach would limit licensed pedicabs

          5  to those which are only pedal-powered.

          6                 Clearly, if there are other products

          7  on the market that change the nature of a pedicab to

          8  something that's closer to a vehicle, then there

          9  would be significant questions I think that

         10  everybody would need answered regarding public

         11  safety and whether DMV also had something to say.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would say,

         13  Mr. Chairman, that that raises a whole host of new

         14  issues, and that we have to address ourselves to it.

         15  But my own feeling is that to the extent that we

         16  move into electric-powered or gasoline-engine

         17  powered vehicles, I'd be reluctant to move in that

         18  direction.

         19                 And in fact, I would suggest that we

         20  act relatively quickly in that regard because

         21  otherwise we're going to see 100 of them on the

         22  street, and there's going to be a lot of pressure to

         23  authorize them. So, I think we ought to deal with

         24  that issue.

         25                 By the way, in Asia, where I lived
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          2  many years ago, they one version of this which was

          3  motorcycle-powered pedicab, which in the context of

          4  traffic, which is relatively limited worked. I must

          5  say it worked. And in some respects maybe even a

          6  safer vehicle than the pedal-powered ones and it had

          7  greater power and could keep up with the traffic.

          8                 But if we're going to get in that

          9  area, I think that raises a whole host of other

         10  questions, and I think we ought to tread very

         11  lightly there.

         12                 So, I think it's something we ought

         13  to look at. I'm partial to what you said, that we

         14  should not get into these powered vehicles, except

         15  human-powered vehicles. It raises all kinds of

         16  questions and also questions of fairness to the taxi

         17  industry because when you get involved in an

         18  electric- or gasoline-powered vehicle, then it

         19  really is more like a car than like a bicycle.

         20                 So, I think that's a serious concern.

         21  I also might say, Mr. Chairman, I think before this

         22  gets completely out of hand, and I see many, many

         23  more of these pedicabs as the weeks go by, we should

         24  move on it one way or the other so that we don't --

         25  you know, I see how many people are here today and
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          2  the more people that get into this business, the

          3  more we are then hurting people, if we clamp down on

          4  it. So, if we're going to do it, we should do it

          5  soon.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I agree with

          7  doing it soon whole-heartedly.

          8                 I am disappointed, though, since the

          9  last two hearings, the last one that was in May,

         10  that we don't have any police specifics on accidents

         11  or incidents that you're prepared to bring forward

         12  to us today. I would hope that the Police

         13  Department, and I know I did request it at the last

         14  hearing, I looked at my notes here, how come we

         15  don't have any specifics on accidents or incidents

         16  or even pull-overs by the Police Department? I'm

         17  very disappointed that we don't have that kind of

         18  statistical information.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I'll relay that

         20  to Commissioner Kelly for you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Well, I see

         22  Commissioner Petito here, so I'm sure she'll do that

         23  directly. And I appreciate you doing it as well.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: So do I.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But we really
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          2  could use that, you know, immediately, if not

          3  sooner.

          4                 And the issue on the motorized or

          5  electrical pedicabs, the Law Department never came

          6  up with a review or an analysis of that at all?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We were first

          8  made aware of this pedicab about two days ago.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But that also

         10  came up in the May hearing, that there were

         11  motorized pedicabs out there. We did have a

         12  discussion on that, and presentations by the

         13  motorized people were done after you left, but I

         14  know that your staff was here to take that

         15  information.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: The approach that

         17  we're still taking in 331-A as in 75-A would not

         18  include motor-assisted approaches, and that's still

         19  our position.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 And have you taken a position on the

         22  utilization of these vehicles within the parks?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Yes. The

         24  legislation specifically says that it's a matter

         25  between the industry and would be pedicab businesses
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          2  and the parks, so the legislation specifically

          3  allows for it along with permission coming from

          4  Parks Commissioner.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I believe the

          6  Parks Commissioner wants it treated as a concession,

          7  and that there would have to be further

          8  conversations between the pedicab operators and the

          9  Parks Department.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. And he's

         11  willing to consider it as a concession. Okay,

         12  Councilman Gennaro had some more questions.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: But let me

         14  point out, though, our position, and I would have to

         15  talk to Commissioner Benepe, is that if they

         16  operated in the parks, it would have to stay out of

         17  the bike lanes, in the parks, and would have to be

         18  segregated over to the portion of the park that's

         19  appropriated for cars.

         20                 As you know, in Central Park we have

         21  separated out pedestrian and bike lanes, and then we

         22  have car lanes, and again, dealing with Commissioner

         23  Benepe, I would put my two cents in that they should

         24  have to go where the cars are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: They would go in
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          2  the car lanes, and only in the car lanes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Yes, they

          4  could not be where the bicycles or pedestrians are

          5  currently walking.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And

          8  bicycling.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. It makes

         10  sense to me.

         11                 All right. Councilman Gennaro had

         12  some more questions, then I'll have a few more.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 I was going to talk about the motors,

         16  but I think I will just follow-up on the Chairman's

         17  question regarding parks.

         18                 With regard to the concession, would

         19  there be a limit on the numbers that could be in the

         20  parks? I'm thinking about the horse carriage

         21  industry that already sort of operates there, and

         22  you are going to put the pedicabs head-to-cab with

         23  the horse carriage operators.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, it will

         25  just be actually one park, which is Central Park,
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          2  because in other parks you don't have the horse

          3  trade.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: You could

          6  conceivably have pedicabs, my guess is, some of the

          7  larger parks in the other boroughs. Clearly in

          8  Prospect Park you could have pedicabs.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: What would it

         10  be for Central Park, though? Let's talk about the

         11  horse carriage industry and how that would work.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: This legislation

         13  specifically does not engage in articulating a

         14  concession scheme. It leaves it to the Parks

         15  Department to do that. I leaves that open, it

         16  doesn't ban them from the parks and it says --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay, I would

         18  like to just state for the record, Mr. Chairman,

         19  that I think any further consideration of this bill

         20  with regard to how it would impact parks and this

         21  whole concession thing, that what's being asked for

         22  here is kind of a blank check so-to-speak for the

         23  Parks Department to kind of work out how this would

         24  all work, and I don't know as though, you know,

         25  without further details on what that would actually
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          2  be, we don't want to leave this up for the sole

          3  discretion of the Parks Commissioner. We have

          4  another industry that we have to think about,

          5  certainly. So, I think we need more tightness on

          6  that than just the Parks Commissioner and his staff,

          7  as much as I love Adrian, but I think we should have

          8  more say as to what that would actually be.

          9                 Let me go back to the discussion of

         10  the last couple of minutes with regard to motors and

         11  electric and motor-assisted. So, you know, your bill

         12  would not allow them to be licensed. If it was

         13  anything other than human power, as does Alan

         14  Gerson's bill, and of course there are a lot of

         15  these electric assisted, or probably more of the

         16  case, the motor-assisted pedicabs on the street

         17  right now.

         18                 So, if these are motor vehicles,

         19  which they are, and if they're picking up street

         20  hails, are they being prohibited now from engaging

         21  in that activity? Is any --

         22                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Well, pedicabs

         23  are not currently regulated, so there's no such

         24  thing as unlicensed pedicab activity.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Well, if
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          2  there is a motor vehicle on the street, if this

          3  motor vehicle is accepting street hails, then why

          4  would such activity be beyond the reach of the City

          5  of New York.

          6                 I couldn't go in my car and pick up

          7  street hails, I couldn't do that. I operate a motor

          8  vehicle, and I'm not allowed to pick up street

          9  hails, I'm not a taxi.

         10                 If there is a motor vehicle, whether

         11  it's registered or in this case not registered, who

         12  is engaging in a regulated activity, and why would

         13  such activity be beyond the enforcement powers of

         14  the Bloomberg Administration who should be enforcing

         15  that only the tax industry does street hails, if

         16  you're talking about motor vehicles, which these

         17  are?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: I mean, I

         19  think what you're saying, Councilman, is clearly

         20  yellow cabs are empowered in the City of New York to

         21  pick up street hails. We have 13,000 cabs in the

         22  City of New York.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: We also have

         25  40,000 black cars in the City of New York.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Street hails

          5  now though. Street hails.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Okay. Black

          7  cars also are not authorized to pick up street

          8  hails.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And they're

         10  enforced against for that?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: They are. But

         12  in reality, we all know that we don't have taxi

         13  inspectors on every block, and nor do the police

         14  have eyes everywhere. As we know, there are street

         15  hails going on by black cab operators in the City of

         16  New York.

         17                 That's a reality. It's going on.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Likewise, I

         20  don't know how many of these motorized pedicabs are

         21  operating. The agency has no idea and I don't think

         22  consumer affairs has any idea.

         23                 I will tell you that they are not

         24  deemed to be, because they're not regulated, they're

         25  not deemed to be motor vehicles. There's no
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          2  regulation on them. They don't have licenses, they

          3  don't have any type of registration, so, therefore,

          4  they're sort of in this effa (phonetic). We don't

          5  know really who they are, what they are or what

          6  they're doing.

          7                 By having this bill, we will start to

          8  get under control an industry that is growing and

          9  blossoming.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And then

         12  we'll get a sense of what's going on out there and

         13  try and rein all these different nooses in.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And I agree

         15  with your logic on that, that my question sort of

         16  would be remedied by some kind of regulatory

         17  paradigm that would work --

         18                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: If I --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: For now it

         20  just is the reality that you have unlicensed,

         21  unregulated motor vehicles picking up street hails,

         22  which is an illegal activity, and I would encourage

         23  the Bloomberg Administration to put on their

         24  thinking caps and figure out how this illegal

         25  activity could be brought to a halt even before we
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          2  do the regulatory scheme, because if you've got

          3  motor vehicles that are engaging in this kind of a

          4  commerce, then there must be a way to stop it. We

          5  don't have to accept that just by virtue of them

          6  staying so far beneath the radar that there's

          7  nothing we can do.

          8                 I know in my district some kid was

          9  operating his bike in such a way, and he kept on

         10  doing it, and the cops took his bike. Now, his bike

         11  was not a regulated vehicle, but they still took it.

         12  And, so, I leave it to you that this is a problem

         13  and it ought to be a problem for the Bloomberg

         14  Administration, which you're trying to solve with

         15  the regulation, I understand that. But it's not

         16  going to happen today. So, between now and then we

         17  need something.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: If I could also

         19  just add that while I can't speak for any

         20  interactions that the police may have had with these

         21  vehicles, that these pedicabs, motorized pedicabs,

         22  it's not clear to us that these are technically

         23  considered vehicles from the State's perspective,

         24  and so look into regulation as a car --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: You're
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          2  hurting yourself now. I mean, you shouldn't --

          3                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: You and I share

          4  the same concerns that --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I'm just

          6  saying, but you don't really want to be perceived as

          7  saying the words that these things aren't vehicles.

          8  They're vehicles, they have motors, they have

          9  drivers, they're doing street hails, they're

         10  engaging commerce. It's what they are. And, so, I

         11  don't think you want to go -- go there if you want,

         12  but I don't think you really want to go there.

         13  Everyone in the world knows that these are vehicles.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I think you and I

         15  agree in a way that I might not have been clear

         16  about, which is why we in our legislation do not

         17  include them in what we think should be out there

         18  currently on the streets.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Agreed.

         20  Agreed.

         21                 And I think perhaps the point that

         22  you were getting to is that in order for -- I mean,

         23  it's a legal distinction. It's not quote a vehicle,

         24  but it is engaging in this activity. It is a

         25  motorized thing. It is engaging in street hails.
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          2  It's not a legal activity if it indeed has a motor,

          3  and there's got to be a way to fix that. I'll leave

          4  it at that and not belabor it.

          5                 Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

          7  Council member.

          8                 In your opinion, Commissioners, what

          9  do you think is the primary distinction with the

         10  pedicab industry for the primary problem that you

         11  feel is in dealing with this pedicab industry at

         12  this particular time, other than the unregulation?

         13                 And I'm still concerned that there

         14  has been no attempt by any entity in the

         15  Administration to take a look at the numbers or deal

         16  with any statistics with the industry, either any

         17  level of transgression or any level of enhancement

         18  that the industry brings. So, you know, we're here

         19  to acknowledge that there is an unregulated industry

         20  out there, but not to have any kind of study done by

         21  the Administration disturbs me. You know, not to

         22  know there has been a sweep of any type, or any type

         23  of interdiction to find out what the technical

         24  problems are, it just leaves it to us to come up

         25  with a set of regulations that may not be even
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          2  enforceable.

          3                 We're talking about putting manpower

          4  to deal with this, what would be in an enforcement

          5  protocol that you see in your mind to deal with this

          6  thing?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I think this

          8  legislation provides for some very strong

          9  enforcement opportunities. One which is the easy

         10  opportunity to see from afar whether or not both a

         11  driver and a cab is licensed, because of the

         12  requirements regarding the affixing of medallions

         13  and the displaying of individual driver's licenses.

         14  So, right away I think that's going to tell my staff

         15  or the police or anyone else authorized to enforce,

         16  whether or not you have somebody pedaling down the

         17  road that shouldn't be. That's important.

         18                 It will also tell you whether or not

         19  that pedicab has been inspected and past inspection

         20  in the course of the last year, which will tell you

         21  automatically that they had operating rights, a

         22  signaling device, seatbelts, et cetera, et cetera.

         23                 And as my colleague pointed out, also

         24  an alternative brake system, which is very

         25  important.
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          2                 So, you know, you'll be able to see

          3  very quickly right away whether or not those are in

          4  place. In addition, of course, as I mentioned

          5  before, the mere fact that a business can lose their

          6  business, if they don't adhere to those standards,

          7  it's a very powerful enforcement tool, in our

          8  experience.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Who would do the

         10  enforcement? I mean, the police do car stops all the

         11  time where they set up intersections where you have

         12  to bleed through slowly. I mean, that's never been

         13  done with this industry? They haven't done a pedicab

         14  stop along the --

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Councilman,

         16  on what basis? I mean, they are operating on the

         17  streets of New York. There is no standard for them

         18  to judge them by.

         19                 If we gave the Police Department

         20  standards, then they could stop them. So, if a

         21  pedicab didn't have the proper reflective lights, or

         22  the proper brake system, or didn't have their

         23  license properly affixed to the pedicab, then the

         24  police officer would have the tools to be able to

         25  deal with it. Right now they're just out there in
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          2  the streets operating as they please.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So there's never

          4  been any attempt to find a side regulation to come

          5  up with an excuse to do a sweep, is what you're

          6  saying? There's been nothing out there now that

          7  would allow the Police Department any opportunity or

          8  Department of Consumer Affairs any opportunity to do

          9  a particular statistical sweep?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I can't speak for

         11  the police. I would say that this legislation is

         12  actually coming from the concerns and values

         13  expressed from, among other parties, the Police

         14  Department.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Have you talked

         16  about or thought about a midtown cap on the usage of

         17  the pedicabs at all, on just like a red zone in

         18  Midtown area?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: We're certainly

         20  familiar with the idea. The Administration's

         21  position is that it would be, that while the Council

         22  may wish to reserve the possibility of doing that in

         23  the future should that be a problem, the current

         24  legislation from the Administration the mechanism so

         25  that one necessarily doesn't have to go back through
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          2  the statutory process. That's one approach to it.

          3                 But it is our position overall that

          4  there seems to be no reason at the moment to

          5  regulate the industry with that heavy of a hand.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: And by the

          7  way, Councilman, under the Administration's bill,

          8  once we assessed all that's out there, by

          9  rule-making the DCA Commissioner could then impose a

         10  cap at that point, or create districts, as you point

         11  out. But we still want to assess once this bill was

         12  enacted into law, to get a sense of what's out

         13  there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         15                 I also want to agree with -- Council

         16  Member Koppell I think it was that said about

         17  leaving the full discretion to the Parks Commission

         18  to set the concessions. I think there are other

         19  industries that are in the parks now, we need to

         20  have some regulation and oversight on that as well.

         21  I think that's something that we can work out pretty

         22  clearly in discussions before the final bill.

         23                 Hold on a second.

         24                 Since we don't have any statistics we

         25  can bandy about, we haven't dealt with the issue of
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          2  -- well, you're saying the Administration believes

          3  that you don't want any motorized vehicles out there

          4  at all, which I don't disagree with. We have to take

          5  a hard look at those issues.

          6                 I don't have any other questions for

          7  you at this particular time, but I look forward to

          8  an internal discussion with you to resolve these

          9  matters as quickly as possible.

         10                 I see Council Member Gennaro wants to

         11  take one last bite.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: No, no, no.

         13  It's okay.

         14                 Just out of fairness, Commissioner

         15  Mintz, you mentioned the whole thing about motorized

         16  assist, you know, not being classified as a vehicle,

         17  and I have a document here that was provided to me

         18  from New York State Department of Motor Vehicles,

         19  Legal Services, and it seems that if it's a

         20  situation, just out of fairness to you, if it's a

         21  situation that the motorized bicycle must be

         22  continually powered by human power in order to be

         23  propelled, in other words, you have to pedal it,

         24  that it can't run on power all by itself, that you

         25  have to add it, then as far as the Department of
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          2  Motor Vehicle is concerned, it's essentially not a

          3  motor vehicle, it's essentially a bicycle.

          4                 So, this was -- I know when you

          5  responded in that way, I kind of jumped on you a

          6  little bit, but out of fairness it would seem that

          7  it falls into this category which could impede the

          8  enforcement of these as motor vehicles. I still

          9  think you ought to do it, you know, but I just want

         10  to be fair to you that I've been provided with an

         11  interpretation that more -- that kind of spells out

         12  the quandary that you're in. I just wanted to put

         13  that on the record.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  Commissioner.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         18  Councilman Gennaro.

         19                 You do feel that once we have a bill

         20  in place, that you will have the enforcement

         21  capacity to enforce whatever is dealt with or come

         22  up with?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: I think between

         24  our staff and the police and the good citizens of

         25  New York, we'll be in great shape.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          3                 And you know, my favorite thing is

          4  whether or not we could have pedicabs stands, and I

          5  hadn't heard anything about that possibility either,

          6  but that's still not on the table, correct?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MINTZ: No. Not at this

          8  time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         10                 All right, Commissioners, I want to

         11  thank you both for coming down to testify this

         12  afternoon, and we look forward to talking with you

         13  about this soon. Hopefully we can bring this to a

         14  vote early in the new year.

         15                 Next we're going to hear from --

         16  excuse me if I mangle your last name, Erhan Tuncel.

         17  Vincent Sapone. David Pollack. Joseph Giannetto. And

         18  Arthur Goldstein. All representing taxi drivers and

         19  taxi industry and the Committee for Taxi Safety.

         20                 If you have any copies to pass out,

         21  can you hand them to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         22                 Good afternoon, gentlemen. Who would

         23  like to go first?

         24                 MR. GIANNETTO: Okay, I'll go first.

         25  Thank you very much. Good afternoon, Mr. Chair,
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          2  members of the Committee. My name is Joseph

          3  Giannetto. I represent the Metropolitan Taxicab

          4  Board of Trade, a 54-year-old trade association of

          5  fleet operators, dedicated to, amongst other things,

          6  protecting the yellow medallion taxicab's exclusive

          7  right to pick up street hails and to protecting the

          8  safety of our drivers, passengers and the public. We

          9  represent nearly 3,100 yellow medallion taxicabs

         10  that are leased to over 12,000 drivers in 24 fleet

         11  garages throughout the City.

         12                 Now, with all due respect to City

         13  Hall, I think a more appropriate venue for today's

         14  hearing would be on West 52nd Street, between

         15  Seventh and Eighth Avenues, approximately 10:40

         16  p.m., when 30 to 40 pedicabs regularly congests this

         17  narrow street by hawking for fares outside the

         18  musicals Jersey Boys and Hair Spray. You can't

         19  imagine anyone witnessing the resulting disorder,

         20  traffic and safety nightmares, would think that

         21  anything about pedicab industry's current mode of

         22  operation is safe or beneficial to this City.

         23                 As a former Police Captain, I can

         24  tell you that the pedicab situation in the theater

         25  district and on the roadways in Manhattan is chaotic
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          2  and dangerous.

          3                 While Intro. 75-A and Intro. 331-A

          4  address some important concerns regarding the 400 to

          5  500 pedicabs estimated on the street today, and

          6  there are some very good provisions in both bills,

          7  neither go far enough to adequately protect public

          8  safety or honor the yellow taxi's exclusive right to

          9  pick up street hails as provided for in the City's

         10  administrative code, its traffic regulations and the

         11  TLC rules and regulations.

         12                 Now, as MTBOT has documented in a new

         13  ten-minute DVD which was distributed to every member

         14  of the City Council, the myth that pedicabs provide

         15  harmless sightseeing rides to tourists has been

         16  proven false.

         17                 The fact is, pedicabs aggressively

         18  hawk rides on bike taxis, as they call them, and

         19  pick up as many tourists as they do New Yorkers.

         20  They load passengers without regard to their safety,

         21  cramming families of four into two passenger

         22  carriages with small children riding unprotected on

         23  their parents' laps.

         24                 Pedicabs routinely violate the law by

         25  congesting streets and sidewalks, no standing zones
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          2  and yellow taxi stands often forcing pedestrians

          3  into the street.

          4                 Pedicabs are ripping passengers off,

          5  charging nearly 500 percent above what a taxi

          6  charges. Pedicabs steal point-to-point

          7  transportation business away from hard-working taxi

          8  drivers and owners, and the fleet of pedicabs is

          9  rapidly shifting to a motorized high-powered fleet.

         10  These pedicabs are described by the manufacturers

         11  themselves as having powerful engines akin to a

         12  three cylinder automobile engine.

         13                 Pedicabs are inherently unsafe.

         14  Pedicabs share the road with fast-moving vehicles on

         15  Manhattan's crowded streets but cannot provide the

         16  protection for their passengers.

         17                 Imagine what would happen when a

         18  pedicab collides with a bus, car, a truck, 30 miles

         19  per hour. Accidents including ones involving small

         20  children have already occurred throughout the

         21  country, including New York City. The cities of

         22  Vegas, Phoenix, Dallas, Toronto and Vancouver have

         23  either banned pedicabs from the busiest areas, or

         24  from operating during the busiest times of day or

         25  both.
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          2                 And just in today's paper there was

          3  an article that said the City was forced to install

          4  shared roadway signs in Midtown because there is

          5  simply not enough space for all the sorts of traffic

          6  that are in the City, including cars, buses, trucks

          7  and bicycles.

          8                 Now, the Council must pass a bill

          9  that recognizes the taxis exclusive right to pick up

         10  street hails. If the City chooses to allow pedicabs

         11  to operate, they must operate by prearrangements,

         12  similar to sightseeing buses. If they're truly meant

         13  to provide a tourist service, then let them operate

         14  just as other tourist service operates, not as a

         15  taxicab.

         16                 At the very least, the City Council

         17  must ban taxicabs from operating in the busiest

         18  areas during the busiest times. They absolutely must

         19  ban motorized pedicabs. Any final bill should not be

         20  silent on this issue.

         21                 They are unregistered motor vehicles

         22  subject to confiscation by the police. Legislation

         23  strict liability insurance requirements to protect

         24  the public with language that clearly mandates that

         25  insurance be per pedicab per accident, with coverage
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          2  minimums that reflect the unique circumstances

          3  surrounding of pedicab accidents.

          4                 Now, since pedicabs are defined and

          5  considered as bicycles, any accident involving a

          6  pedicab and an automobile relies on the automobile's

          7  no-fault insurance to pay for medical treatment and

          8  lost income of pedicab passengers and operators

          9  alike injured in those accidents. So, neither bill

         10  adequately addresses these circumstances.

         11                 And to require pedicab operators to

         12  complete a safety course and exam, as included in

         13  Intro. 75-A, and require pedicab operators to be

         14  drug tested, fingerprinted and background checks.

         15  Just requiring a driver's license, as both bills do,

         16  is not enough to ensure public safety.

         17                 So, maybe it's because the taxi

         18  industry is so heavily regulated that our vehicles

         19  are inspected three times a year and retired after

         20  three years, that our drivers undergo comprehensive

         21  testing and background checks, but we feel that the

         22  City has an obligation to create the safest

         23  environment possible. Allowing pedicabs to cruise,

         24  hawk and pick-up anywhere, in violation of current

         25  traffic rules and regulations, at any time, does not
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          2  create the safest environment possible.

          3                 So, furthermore, and in conclusion,

          4  the City also has an obligation to protect the

          5  yellow medallion taxicab's exclusive right to pick

          6  up street hails, having made more than $340 million

          7  from the sale of 900 medallions over the last three

          8  years - that's 900 separate promises to medallion

          9  owners that they and they alone had the exclusive

         10  right to pick up street hails. So, we hope that by

         11  the time the City sells the recently authorized 150

         12  medallions, that promise will be more meaningful.

         13                 Thank you for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Next.

         15                 MR. POLLACK: Good afternoon, Mr.

         16  Chairman, Council members. My name is David Pollack,

         17  the Executive Director for the Committee of Taxi

         18  Safety, an association representing over 2,300 New

         19  York City taxi medallion owners managed by

         20  Committee's Licensed Leasing Agents, Fleets and the

         21  thousands of men and women driving those taxis.

         22                 The proliferation of pedicabs on our

         23  City Streets poses a great many problems, not only

         24  to the yellow medallion industry, but to the public

         25  as well.
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          2                 Although we agree that regulations

          3  need to be promulgated, the proposed regulations

          4  fall far short of the regulations promulgated in

          5  many other cities that have addressed this problem.

          6                 As an example, in Las Vegas pedicabs

          7  have been banned from the strip because they were

          8  deemed unsafe and because they had an adverse effect

          9  on traffic. In other cities, such as Dallas,

         10  Phoenix, Toronto, regulators had limited the hours

         11  and places where pedicabs can operate.

         12                 In contrast to these cities, with New

         13  York being far more congested and in contrast to

         14  similar transportation, such as the horse and

         15  buggies, pedicabs are given unlimited access to our

         16  City streets except for our bridges and tunnels and

         17  needing permission to operate in parks, the latter

         18  of which is exactly where they should be limited to

         19  operate.

         20                 Perhaps most importantly, the

         21  proposed regulations do not mandate insurance for

         22  each pedicab. In contrast to existing regulations

         23  mandating that each yellow cab, or for that matter

         24  each and every vehicle in this State be ensured,

         25  thereby exposing the public to danger of injury
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          2  without just compensation. It is unprecedented not

          3  to have each and every vehicle insured. There must

          4  be insurance mandated for each and every pedicab.

          5                 These proposed regulations also allow

          6  for street hails by pedicabs, thereby placing the

          7  pedicabs in open disregard and violation of the

          8  exclusive hail rights of the yellow medallion

          9  industry. There is nothing in the proposed bill that

         10  prohibits pedicabs from utilizing electrical

         11  motorizing pedicabs, and in fact, some pedicabs are

         12  already motorized.

         13                 As an example, Main Street pedicabs

         14  advertises that it has an electric assist pedicab,

         15  which is similar to a three-cylinder vehicle engine.

         16  Bicytaxi advertises that every Bicytaxi has an

         17  engine also.

         18                 Over the last three years the City

         19  has sold yellow taxi medallions premised upon the

         20  exclusive hail right, with the purchases of these

         21  medallions came to the City more than $340 million,

         22  with this legislation the exclusive hail right has

         23  become meaningless. With this legislation the City

         24  has sold medallions on a false premise. Nor do the

         25  proposed regulations limit the number of pedicabs.
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          2                 How the proposed regulations do not

          3  serve the public? One, the proposed regulations

          4  provide for the pedicabs to police themselves.

          5                 As an example, if insurance coverage

          6  lapses, there is no provision for automatic

          7  notification to this Committee or the appointed

          8  regulatory body, rather it is the pedicab company

          9  that let its insurance lap just to notify the

         10  regulatory agency.

         11                 Two, the proposed regulations do not

         12  provide for driver drug testing. Rather, the

         13  regulations set forth that a pedicab driver is to

         14  police himself and the driver is simply prohibited

         15  from operating a pedicab while using drugs. Once

         16  again, public safety is not being served.

         17                 Three, the proposed regulations do

         18  not mandate a requirement for a criminal background

         19  check of pedicab drivers.

         20                 Four, the proposed regulations also

         21  allow for the pedicab drivers to consistently and

         22  flagrantly violate traffic laws. Pedicab drivers

         23  would be allowed up to three violations for every

         24  12-month period, regardless of the type of

         25  violation.
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          2                 As an example, over a three-year

          3  period, eight violations would be tolerated,

          4  including violations such as going through red

          5  lights, public safety not being served.

          6                 Five, the proposed bill does not

          7  limit the number of passengers to the number of

          8  seats of space available.

          9                 Six, the proposed bill provides no

         10  training for the pedicab operators in direct

         11  contrast to drivers of yellow cabs who need to

         12  complete comprehensive safety and job training

         13  procedures.

         14                 The public safety is not being

         15  served.

         16                 The pedicabs are also allowed to

         17  regulate their own fares. Public welfare is not

         18  being served.

         19                 In prior hearings you, as a Council,

         20  have expressed a predilection for the pedicab

         21  drivers, viewing them seemingly as a group that is

         22  economically disadvantaged who deserve the right to

         23  make a living and be their own bosses.

         24                 But I ask you, what about the yellow

         25  taxi drivers and individuals who borrowed thousands
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          2  of dollars to purchase a medallion from the City?

          3  Did their rights not count? Should they not be

          4  afforded the same consideration you are giving to

          5  the pedicab driver? Should you allow the pedicab

          6  drivers to take business from those individuals who

          7  purchased what was an exclusive right from the City?

          8                 And what about the drivers of yellow

          9  taxis? Are yellow taxis, are they in any different

         10  position from that of pedicab drivers? And yet, by

         11  these regulations you are proposing that the pedicab

         12  drivers earn their living off their backs of the

         13  yellow cab owners and drivers by taking business

         14  that is to be exclusively the province of yellow cab

         15  owners and drivers. I suggest that this is patently

         16  unfair.

         17                 On a practical level, who will be

         18  inspecting these pedicab vehicles? Where are these

         19  vehicles to be inspected? Where are these expedited

         20  hearings that regulations propose being held? Who is

         21  hearing these matters? These regulations envision an

         22  infrastructure that is simply not there yet.

         23                 And the fees being proposed for

         24  licenses simply will not pay for this

         25  infrastructure. Although, we support regulation of
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          2  the pedicabs for the public safety and welfare and

          3  on behalf of the yellow medallion industry, we do

          4  not believe these regulations should be promulgated.

          5  We ask that we have the opportunity to meet with

          6  this Committee on an expedited basis, so regulations

          7  that can achieve their intended purpose can be

          8  drafted. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Next.

         10                 MR. SAPONE: Good afternoon, Mr.

         11  Chairman, and Council members. I have to say, what

         12  Joe Giannetto and David Pollack added to this, I'll

         13  say what I have to say, but it's hard to top that,

         14  you know? Very tough. You're absolutely right, there

         15  is no stories there. They spoke the truth.

         16                 Anyway, good afternoon, Council

         17  members. My name is Vincent Sapone. I am the

         18  Managing Director of the League of Mutual Taxi

         19  Owners, better known as LOMTO. We have approximately

         20  3,000 members. We are small business owners,

         21  individuals that own or drive and own a medallion.

         22                 Just to enlighten you, as you

         23  probably know, Las Vegas had banded pedicabs from

         24  the strip. Dallas, Phoenix, Toronto and other cities

         25  have banded pedicabs from major streets, or
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          2  restricted their hours of operation.

          3                 In San Diego, in 2005, a four-year

          4  old child was among the passengers thrown from a

          5  pedicab. A year later, a man was thrown from a

          6  turning pedicab and sustained serious head injuries.

          7                 Pedicabs in New York City have been

          8  dangerously carrying four or more passengers at a

          9  time. Why is New York City allowing these dangerous

         10  pedicabs to roam anywhere in the City, especially in

         11  Midtown, where traffic is unbearable. They are an

         12  accident waiting to happen. They tie up traffic on

         13  busy streets. New York City is very congested. They

         14  should not be allowed on Main avenues.

         15                 Besides picking up street hails,

         16  which is supposed to be exclusively for yellow

         17  medallion taxis, pedicabs are soliciting people at

         18  theaters every night and during matinees.

         19                 Twenty or more pedicabs show up at

         20  the theater entrance 15 to 20 minutes before the

         21  show lets out, obstructing the streets, blocking the

         22  taxi stands. A legitimate taxi cannot use the taxi

         23  stand or pull up anywhere to the curb to pick up a

         24  passenger. It's completely impossible.

         25                 I would love every City Council
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          2  member and New York City and Iris Weinshall to go to

          3  these theaters before they make these rules, see

          4  what's going on, go down Fifth Avenue, see them

          5  passing lights. It's becoming a circus here. Next

          6  year we'll have dogs pulling sleds pulling people

          7  around. That's what it's going to come to. A husky.

          8  I got a couple of huskies, maybe I'll go into that

          9  business.

         10                 I mean, it's ridiculous. It's really

         11  ridiculous. Allowing pedicabs to work New York City

         12  streets has hurt every group legally allowed to pick

         13  up street hails. Yellow medallion taxis and putting

         14  people that ride pedicabs in harm's way.

         15                 Pedicabs should be banned from

         16  Midtown. There is enough congestion in Midtown. We

         17  do not need hundreds, and who knows, one day

         18  thousands of pedicabs making congestion worse.

         19                 The pedicab operators wants to pick

         20  up street hails, they should do it legally. Get a

         21  hack license and drive a taxi. I can't believe this

         22  City is bowing to the pedicab industry.

         23                 I've been a taxicab driver for over

         24  33 years. I've been through it all, okay? This is a

         25  disgrace. This will tie up traffic, slow down
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          2  traffic, God forbid if there's a major accident.

          3  Listen, they want to drive a pedicab, let them go to

          4  the parks or to Coney Island, that's fine. Or Yankee

          5  Stadium. You can't have these accidents waiting to

          6  happen, in the areas of New York. You can't do it.

          7                 Anyway --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We understand how

          9  you feel, Mr. Sapone.

         10                 MR. SAPONE: Well, you know something?

         11  Everybody has got to make a living, okay? But don't

         12  steal from your brother, okay? And don't be in

         13  harm's way of any accidents.

         14                 And like I said, these are young guys

         15  here. Apply for a hack license and do it legally.

         16  And they should be properly insured, not dependent

         17  on the automobile that they hit and he has to use

         18  his insurance.

         19                 I don't know how that works, what's

         20  going on here. But something is very wrong with

         21  these rules. Very wrong. It's not the America way,

         22  and it's not the New York way. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         24                 Next person. We've been joined by the

         25  great American, Council Member Charles Barron.
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          2                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Good afternoon, Mr.

          3  Chairman, Council members. My name is Arthur

          4  Goldstein. I don't know why I always have to follow

          5  him, it's just too difficult.

          6                 I represent the taxicab association,

          7  an association of credit unions that lend to

          8  medallion owners. They have hundreds of millions on

          9  the street, and they are very concerned about the

         10  right, the exclusive right to street hails, that

         11  that right be preserved.

         12                 To be short, because I don't want to

         13  repeat everything that was said before me, the TSA

         14  agrees with the three previous speakers, we need to

         15  focus on safety, the seat belt requirements, they're

         16  really just an illusion of safety. It's not enough.

         17  Helmets. You know, if I go out with my child, both

         18  of us have to wear helmets when we're riding bikes.

         19  The insurance issue has to be reviewed very

         20  carefully, because in fact, one of the plans might

         21  increase no fault claims, which affects everybody,

         22  and drug testing is also very important.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         25  Gennaro.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 MR. TUNGEL: My name is Erhan Tungel,

          4  and I own and operate a New York City cab. I also

          5  belong to LOMTO. And when I purchased my medallion

          6  seven years ago, I was promised that I was

          7  purchasing the privilege, or the exclusive privilege

          8  of picking up street hails. So, this pedicab, which

          9  I call "pedi-disaster," because they're just that,

         10  they're a disaster waiting to happen, and I'll have

         11  to agree with Commissioner Gennaro (sic) that you

         12  will be here in the coming years to evaluate the

         13  situation because there will probably be a disaster

         14  in one of them. When you wanted the Police

         15  Department to provide you with some statistics on

         16  what the accidents were, I can recall one accident

         17  which was in the media about two tourists getting

         18  hit by a bus, a private bus, not a City bus but a

         19  private bus, and they spent considerable amount of

         20  time in a hospital trying to get well. Now, the

         21  pedicab is not a match for a bumper of a three-,

         22  four-thousand, you know, three-, four-thousand pound

         23  car, this is dangerous. It does not serve the public

         24  in any safe way. I don't care what kind of

         25  regulations you bring upon them, they are dangerous,
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          2  period, okay? And they're taking my income away. You

          3  must consider that. I bought a medallion. Nevermind

          4  me, somebody, I know somebody who just purchased a

          5  medallion, $412,000, making $3,500 medallion

          6  payments every month, paying $4,000, $5,000 on

          7  insurance. He's got a family, house mortgage. Now,

          8  what about him? Does he not count? Just because

          9  these people want to ride a pedicab in a City

         10  street, in, I consider my streets, because I am part

         11  of transportation in New York City for decades,

         12  okay? We have a piece of pie in this transportation

         13  industry among the buses, the private car companies,

         14  among the liveries and everything else. They are

         15  going to be hacking into our piece of the pie, not

         16  anybody else's. Not bus -- bus riders are not going

         17  to take these people, the limousine riders are not

         18  going to take these people, the taxi riders are

         19  going to take them. And to think -- and have you

         20  ever seen a pedicab operate on the street? Has any

         21  one of you seen a pedicab operate on the street?

         22  Have you ever seen one in the middle of Fifth Avenue

         23  when traffic is moving well over speeds of 20 miles

         24  an hour, in the middle of Fifth Avenue for God's

         25  sake. Do you consider that safe? What are you
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          2  supposed to do, be on the left lane blocking

          3  everybody else's way?

          4                 Now, if you're considering bringing,

          5  you know, making New York City air cleaner, and

          6  claiming that, excuse me, but stupidity that these

          7  vehicles are clean than regular vehicles (sic)? What

          8  about all the congestion that they're going to

          9  create because they're on the road. What about their

         10  cutting my speed, the bus's speed. Have you seen a

         11  bus trying to go around one of these pedicabs? Or

         12  one of the pedicabs trying to go around the bus? In

         13  the middle of the street, between cars, weaving in

         14  and out.

         15                 Okay, I'm sorry. But also there's one

         16  important point: you requested that the Police

         17  Department come up with statistics on what the

         18  accidents were in New York City. I would suggest,

         19  strongly suggest that you not only collect the

         20  statistics from New York City, but you also collect

         21  the statistics from all the other cities in this

         22  case which they've been banned from, okay?

         23                 They cannot in Las Vegas, in New

         24  Orleans, in Phoenix, in some cities -- why? What was

         25  the reason why they banned these things from their
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          2  streets, or restricted their use to only certain

          3  hours.

          4                 Why don't you go and ask them? Go and

          5  ask them, the members of their City Council.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

          7  your testimony. I appreciate the panel being here

          8  today.

          9                 Council Member Gennaro and then

         10  Council Member Barron have questions, and then I'll

         11  ask a couple of questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 Everyone recalls I had that colloquy

         15  with Commissioner Mintz, I indicated that they were

         16  vehicles, and then he said, well, I'm not sure that

         17  they are vehicles, and then I was provided with this

         18  interpretation from the Department of Motor Vehicles

         19  that says that technically they can't be powered on

         20  their own, if you have to add human power to the

         21  equation, technically it's a bicycle. And, so, where

         22  it all came together, when Arthur Goldstein was

         23  talking about the helmets. Now, if they're bicycles,

         24  again, I'm just sort of putting this on the record

         25  more than asking a question, if they're bicycles,
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          2  you know, how can it be that if we have helmet laws

          3  of people who operate bicycles, they should have to

          4  wear helmets if these are bicycles, because they're

          5  more than bicycles, there are bicycles with motors.

          6                 So, that's something I am going to be

          7  looking into, Mr. Chairman, because there's only so

          8  many ways you can have this, you're a vehicle or

          9  you're not a vehicle. You're not a bicycle, you're

         10  not this, we don't have to act like vehicles, we

         11  don't have to act like bicycles, we don't have to

         12  follow the laws of bicycles, we don't have to follow

         13  the laws of vehicles, we don't have to follow the

         14  laws of anything, which is why we're all here today

         15  trying to figure out some regulatory paradigm that

         16  makes some sense.

         17                 As I said before, I continue to agree

         18  with this panel that from an environmental

         19  perspective, that theses pedicabs are not taking

         20  vehicles off the road, which they're not. Cabs

         21  aren't staying home, buses aren't staying home,

         22  other traffic is not staying home, so because they

         23  are not displacing vehicles, they are just there

         24  causing congestion and by definition, you know,

         25  causing more air pollution by virtue of the
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          2  congestion which is such a big item these days.

          3                 And, so, I have been to the

          4  intersections that you articulated. I've been there

          5  like when the shows are letting out. I've seen it

          6  with my own eyes. I've looked at the DVD that has

          7  been created. I will commend that to anyone who is

          8  interested in the really serious discussion of this

          9  matter, and just know that there are sympathetic

         10  Council members who, you know, care about creating a

         11  green, clean industry, and an environmentally benign

         12  way to transport folks. And, so, I am supportive of

         13  your efforts and we'll advocate for you in this

         14  process, which is for the safety of the riding

         15  public, and I thank you for your testimony today.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Just for the

         18  record, I have looked at your DVD that was

         19  submitted. I have been in Midtown as late as Friday

         20  night, or Thursday night, I forget which, and I've

         21  seen the actions of the industry, and I just want to

         22  put that on for the record also. I've seen the

         23  actions of the pedicab industry and the cab

         24  industry, and I just want to be clear that I have

         25  been looking at it, I have met with owners on both
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          2  ends, and I've met with and talked to drivers on

          3  both ends individually, since the hearing, and I'll

          4  reflect on that a little bit later.

          5                 Council Member Barron.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: In spite of

          7  your passionate creative testimony, there are issues

          8  in this town about -- I lean more towards socialism,

          9  but since you all like capitalism and the free

         10  market economy --

         11                 MR. SAPONE: (Mr. Sapone is not using

         12  the microphone.)

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Excuse me. I'm

         14  talking. You don't talk when I'm talking. Don't talk

         15  when I'm talking. All right, I had to sit and listen

         16  to your husky and the sleigh. Don't talk when I'm

         17  talking. Don't talk when I'm talking, all right? I

         18  had to sit and listen to your husky and the sleigh

         19  thing.

         20                 But since you all believe in this

         21  free-market economy, people having the right to make

         22  some kind of income and poor, poor you, these

         23  pedicabs are taking all your money and clouding your

         24  streets. I've been around pedicabs. I've been in

         25  Midtown. If there were no pedicabs, it's going to be
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          2  congested, it's going to be problems. And there's a

          3  difference between congestion and cleanliness.

          4  Because you talked about it, and then I don't agree

          5  with my Council member here that pedicabs are

          6  causing the congestion, therefore the cars are there

          7  longer and there's more pollution.

          8                 I think we need to stay open. Are

          9  there some issues? Yes. Is there some dangers?

         10  Believe me, I get out of the way of the yellow cabs

         11  who are speeding.

         12                 (Applause.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Quiet, please.

         14  Quiet, please. Quiet please.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Hit me with a

         16  pedicab anytime, but not a yellow cab. Not a yellow

         17  cab.

         18                 So, I just think we need to remain a

         19  little more open to a possibility of coexisting, and

         20  thinking of an intelligent, a way of coming up with

         21  something that allows people to co-exist where

         22  others can earn an income, not at the expense of the

         23  environment, certainly not at the expense of the

         24  safety of the pedestrian or of the cars. And I think

         25  if we remain open, we can reach that resolution. So,
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          2  I just want to let you all know, I'm open, and I

          3  just think we need to work towards something so that

          4  families can be fed. Because some people use this as

          5  a means of income and may have problems getting a

          6  hack license and doing some other kinds of work.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We're not going

          9  to turn it into a debate, since neither one had

         10  questions. You know, we're not debating here. If

         11  they asked you a direct question, it would be fine.

         12  Since both persons had statements and not questions.

         13                 Council Member Koppell, do you have a

         14  question or do you have a statement? Either one is

         15  acceptable.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I have a

         17  brief statement, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Let me know ahead

         19  of time. Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I am

         21  sympathetic to every point of view here and each

         22  point of view has some validity. And certainly the

         23  taxi industry has validity. And I think that, and I

         24  don't want to see any major diminishment of the

         25  right of the taxicab owners, and they paid a lot of
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          2  money for medallions. Only recently the City gained

          3  a lot of money from the medallions, and it's true

          4  that people purchase the medallions with the

          5  expectations they will have exclusive street hail

          6  rights.

          7                 But there may be room for a limited,

          8  a limited pedicab industry. And I would say this to

          9  you, Jim, that I do think that to some extent we've

         10  got to be honest about it, and these gentlemen will

         11  sustain what I'm going to say, to some extent the

         12  person taking the pedicab is displacing a yellow

         13  cab, and substituting an environmentally sound

         14  vehicle for an environmentally less sound vehicle.

         15  Now, there is the congestion issue, but I think if

         16  we limit the number of pedicabs, the congestion

         17  issue becomes less serious. And I also would say

         18  that at certain times of the day, and I'm in Midtown

         19  every day, at certain times of the day the yellow

         20  cab fleet is not adequate, it's just not adequate at

         21  certain times of the day. And to the extent that the

         22  pedicabs provide some supplement to take people

         23  let's say from Grand Central to a nearby hotel,

         24  which is something I see every day, or you know,

         25  just a few blocks, I think it's something that's
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          2  needed, doesn't away a great deal -- I'm not going

          3  to say it doesn't take away anything from the

          4  taxicabs, but a limited supplementation in heavy

          5  transit periods, like when the theaters let out,

          6  when there are not enough cabs around, is not a bad

          7  thing either. So, I think that here, as is usually

          8  the case, there is a middle ground. And I do think

          9  that there is a certain environmental benefit we

         10  gain, but not, we shouldn't gain it at the expense,

         11  too much, of the cab industry.

         12                 So, I think, Mr. Chairman, that the

         13  legislation as proposed that limits it, that

         14  licenses it, limits it, and then let's observe it.

         15  Even in its limited form, if it creates many

         16  accidents, then we may have to ban it.

         17                 I do think it must be limited, and it

         18  has, it is getting out of hand, and I also would say

         19  that I would favor, Mr. Chairman, a total ban on

         20  motorized vehicles, because I think we're getting

         21  into a complex area, and I think it may be the state

         22  law recognizing them as bicycles, and maybe our City

         23  regulation is trumped, in which case we may have to

         24  go to Albany, I think we should try and do what the

         25  City's bill does, which is say, oh, pedicabs are
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          2  only those operated by human power, because we

          3  really get into a problem.

          4                 And then if you do it only by human

          5  power, I suggest that the number of people that are

          6  going to take a pedicab lengthy distances will be

          7  limited, the competition with the cabs will be

          8  limited. They may go a few blocks like taking

          9  someone from grand central to the theater or to a

         10  nearby hotel, but not take someone from grand

         11  central to 85th Street, or to Lower Manhattan or

         12  something like that.

         13                 So, I think that there is an area

         14  here, it should be limited, and I think that if we

         15  proceed more or less as the way these bills do, with

         16  some adjustments, and we have to listen to some of

         17  the suggestions here, I think we can go the right

         18  way.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         20  Council Member Koppell. I appreciate all of your

         21  comments.

         22                 Okay, thank you, gentlemen, for being

         23  here.

         24                 I'm sorry, that was my Precinct

         25  Captain calling me. I had to take that call.
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          2                 The next we have Charlotte St.

          3  Marten? I can't read your handwriting. And Donna

          4  Keren from New York City and Company. Ms. Marten is

          5  the Executive Director of the League of American

          6  Theaters and Producers.

          7                 While they're coming to the table, I

          8  just want to let you know that there is a statement

          9  in opposition to both Intros from the Hotel

         10  Association of New York City. They primarily are

         11  opposing them because the legislation does not

         12  create a ban on pedicabs in the Manhattan Central

         13  Business District.

         14                 The Hotel Association is represented

         15  by Joseph Spinato, the President and CEO. They are

         16  believing that as a result in a rise in numbers,

         17  their member hotels are regarding an increase in

         18  traffic in congestion of pedicabs on the streets and

         19  sidewalks.

         20                 The member hotels are also reporting

         21  that pedicabs lock access to hotels by congregating

         22  outside hotel lobbies, preventing guests from easily

         23  entering or exiting the hotel.

         24                 Furthermore, hotel guests are finding

         25  it increasingly difficult to hail a taxicab as
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          2  pedicabs are frequently lined up outside hotels, and

          3  then they say the problems are worse for guests

          4  arriving or departing with luggage. Without a ban --

          5  the Hotel Association of New York City, opposes both

          6  intros, 331-A and Intro. 75-A because the

          7  legislation does not create a mechanism for

          8  designating mandatory pedicab pick-up and drop-off

          9  locations away from hotel entrances.

         10                 I just wanted to read that into the

         11  record.

         12                 Now we'll hear from whomever would

         13  like to speak first.

         14                 The mic is counterintuitive, the red

         15  light has to be off for the mic to work.

         16                 MS. ST. MARTIN: Good afternoon. Thank

         17  you, Mr. Chairman. I'm Charlotte St. Martin, the

         18  Executive Director of the League of American

         19  Theaters and Producers, the Trade Association for

         20  the Broadway Theater Industry.

         21                 Mr. Chairman and Council members, I

         22  thank you for this opportunity to testify today on

         23  behalf of the producers and theater owners who

         24  comprise the league in respectful opposition to

         25  Intro. No. 331-A and Intro. No. 75-A that would
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          2  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

          3  York in relation to regulating and licensing

          4  pedicabs.

          5                 There are many elements of both bills

          6  that the League strongly supports. We applaud the

          7  licensing procedures, inspection requirements, rate

          8  posting and other means of controlling the pedicab

          9  business that are contained in both bills. We

         10  endorse the equipment requirement and stiff

         11  penalties of Intro. 331-A and the adherence to

         12  traffic rules, the non-transferability of licenses

         13  and the training program required by Intro. 75-A.

         14                 But I represent a trade association

         15  that is committed to providing millions of New

         16  Yorkers and visitors the best possible theater-going

         17  experience, and we feel that the bills do not go far

         18  enough in regulating pedicabs.

         19                 We believe passionately that the

         20  theater-going experience begins before the show

         21  starts and continues after patrons leave the theater

         22  and to this end, we're very concerned about the

         23  growing number of pedicabs that invade the theater

         24  district after matinee and evening performances.

         25                 We believe that serious consideration
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          2  should be given to banning pedicabs from the midtown

          3  business district.

          4                 In the theater district, pedicabs now

          5  run rampant often on narrow theater side streets, as

          6  well as fast moving thoroughfares like Broadway and

          7  Seventh and Eighth Avenues. They solicit

          8  theater-goers for rides on already congested

          9  streets. They weave dangerously in and out of

         10  traffic, they illegally congregate at no-standing

         11  zones, and directly in front of Broadway theaters

         12  when shows let out, blocking excess for taxicabs,

         13  private transportation and pedestrian movement.

         14                 Pedicabs contribute to a dangerous

         15  and chaotic atmosphere in the theater district.

         16  Having been the CEO of a major convention bureau in

         17  Dallas, Texas I certainly understand the charm of

         18  having unique tourist experiences, but when these

         19  experiences begin to create significant safety

         20  hazards to pedicab passengers, pedestrians, and

         21  vehicle passengers alike, when they create

         22  nightmares for people trying to get a taxi or simply

         23  crossing the street, as they are often three, four,

         24  five, six lanes deep, when they run counter to our

         25  collective efforts to protect the public safety,
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          2  then they go from charming to dangerous.

          3                 The City has recently made a very

          4  concerted effort to relieve pedestrian congestion in

          5  Times Square by instating vehicle lane changes and

          6  wider sidewalks.

          7                 The unchecked proliferation of

          8  pedicabs is another part of the existing problem

          9  that needs mitigation. I urge you on behalf of the

         10  entire Broadway theater community to institute the

         11  much needed licensing, maintenance and insurance

         12  requirements as contained in Intro. 331-A, and

         13  Intro. 75-A, but also to allow pedicabs only in

         14  those parts of New York City where they will not

         15  create a dangerous and potentially lethal hazard to

         16  New Yorkers and visitors.

         17                 Short of an outright ban in the

         18  Midtown business district, or at the very least a

         19  strict and substantial cap on the number of pedicab

         20  licenses issued and designated pick-up and drop-off

         21  zones, the League respectfully opposes Intro. 331-A

         22  and Intro. 75-A.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  express the theater industry's feelings on this

         25  matter.
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          2                 MS. KEREN: Good afternoon,

          3  Chairperson Comrie and Council members. I apologize

          4  for an insignificant case of laryngitis. This is

          5  about as good as it gets.

          6                 My name is Donna Keren, and I am Vice

          7  President of Policy and Research at NYC and Company,

          8  the City's official tourism and marketing

          9  organization representing almost 2,000 member

         10  businesses and organizations around New York.

         11                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         12  comment on the proposed legislation to regulate the

         13  growing number of pedicabs on City streets. We want

         14  to thank the Council and the Mayor for the

         15  initiatives in this important area of public safety.

         16                 NYC and Company has long advocated

         17  for regulating this alternative mode of

         18  transportation. The City welcomes 44 million people

         19  a year from around the country and around the world.

         20  The travel and tourism industry generates over $23

         21  billion in spending and economic activity that

         22  supports over 330,000 City jobs and drives over $2

         23  billion into City tax collections. As the City's

         24  convention and visitors bureau, therefore, we want

         25  to make sure that these visits are safe and
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          2  rewarding.

          3                 While there have been few major

          4  accidents involving pedicabs that we are aware of,

          5  we are pleased that the Council and the Mayor are

          6  acting to ensure the continued safety of our

          7  visitors and of all New Yorkers before any serious

          8  collision or incident occurs and comes to our

          9  attention.

         10                 NYC And Company believes it is

         11  necessary to ensure both residents and visitors that

         12  pedicabs are safe, secure, operated legally and in

         13  the public service. Legislation should preserve the

         14  character of our City with its diversity of

         15  interest, while creating a regulatory framework that

         16  establishes reasonable guidelines.

         17                 This will level the playing field for

         18  tourist transportation options. There are several

         19  issues NYC and Company believes must be addressed in

         20  any proposed legislation. First, licensing and

         21  training. Second, insurance coverage and inspection.

         22  And third, uniform and posted rates.

         23                 First, it is necessary to define the

         24  vehicles and operators and provide clarity and

         25  standardization regarding their licensing and
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          2  operation.

          3                 By licensing the vehicles and the

          4  operators, the City is acting as it does in the case

          5  of other transportation providers responsibly and

          6  acting in the interest of the consumers.

          7                 We believe this must include the

          8  licensing of pedicab businesses, as well, along with

          9  the specific pedicab license for each vehicle in

         10  operation, including a conspicuous numbered license

         11  plate for each pedicab that can be easily observed

         12  by passengers, by other vehicle operators and by

         13  pedestrians. Pedicab drivers should also be required

         14  to obtain an operator's license for each person

         15  authorized to operate a pedicab that will mandate

         16  both training and examination.

         17                 The terms and fees for these licenses

         18  should be reasonably priced. Those of us who work in

         19  Midtown have also observed the interactions between

         20  drivers and passengers, where many drivers function

         21  as de facto tour guides. We would like to remind the

         22  Council members that in this City we require that

         23  tour guides be examined and licensed by the

         24  Department of Consumer Affairs.

         25                 And we require that our tour buses
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          2  carry licensed tour guides when they operate within

          3  City limits. If the pedicabs are operating as de

          4  facto tour vehicles, then we can ask no less from

          5  their operators.

          6                 Second, it must be required that each

          7  pedicab business license be conditioned upon the

          8  proof of adequate liability insurance that will

          9  protect not only the passengers, the vehicle owners,

         10  bystanders and other property, but also protect the

         11  small businesses and entrepreneurs who find their

         12  livelihood in this new business opportunity.

         13                 Even a minor, uninsured accident

         14  could subject the pedicab operator or owner to

         15  devastating personal losses. The insurance

         16  requirements along with rules or operation limiting

         17  the number of passengers permitted per vehicle,

         18  would also control the dangerous tendency to

         19  overcrowd these small vehicles.

         20                 Third, the requirements for

         21  inspections are also quite important. We would

         22  expect that the minimum requirements for safe City

         23  driving would include headlights, tail lights, turn

         24  signals, rearview mirrors, adequate, primary and

         25  emergency brakes and, of course, adequate safety
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          2  features for passengers.

          3                 In keeping with the spirit of

          4  responsible consumer service and protection, regular

          5  annual inspections of pedicab vehicles and the

          6  integrity of your equipment will assure that safety

          7  features and protections and foremost. The fees

          8  currently charged by pedicab drivers vary widely,

          9  and leave the passengers, who are most likely

         10  visitors to New York City, open to non-competitive

         11  rates or surprise charges.

         12                 The drivers do not post their rates

         13  leaving visitors to haggle and negotiate.

         14                 Therefore, we ask you to consider

         15  including a requirement in the legislation to

         16  clearly and conspicuously post standardized and set

         17  fares. As is currently required of the City's hansom

         18  drivers, tour bus operators and yellow cab

         19  operators. These fares should be set by local law or

         20  rule as is done for other for-hire vehicles.

         21                 In conclusion, we congratulate the

         22  members of the Council, the Mayor's Office and

         23  Commissioners for acting to assure the safe

         24  operation of the City's latest transportation

         25  alternative. We do look forward to working with you

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  and Council Member Comrie quickly, as well as with

          3  DCA, Transportation, and the NYPD and other tourist

          4  supported businesses to find an equitable solution

          5  to this issue. Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. Seeing

          7  there are no questions from our members, I want to

          8  thank you both for coming down. I appreciate your

          9  comments today.

         10                 Now we will hear from Chad Marlow,

         11  New York Pedicab Owners Association.

         12                 MR. MARLOW: Good afternoon,

         13  Chairperson --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The light is

         15  counterintuitive. I just wanted to let you know that

         16  I decided to have you hear all of the variables

         17  before you came and testified today. Since this is

         18  your first time coming to hearing, I thought it

         19  might be helpful in your testimony to hear all of

         20  the variables that are a part of this bill.

         21                 MR. MARLOW: And I thank you for that,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 I would like to thank the Committee,

         24  you, in particular, Mr. Chairman, for your

         25  leadership on this issue, and in particular on
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          2  behalf of the Pedicab industry, I would really like

          3  to thank both Commissioners who appeared here today,

          4  the Council Speaker, the Mayor of New York, the

          5  entire City Council for what has really been a very

          6  productive, engaging and positive discussion on how

          7  to best regulate the pedicab industry.

          8                 Mr. Chairman, I particularly

          9  appreciate that in the beginning you went out of

         10  your way to point out that the pedicab industry

         11  itself is very optimistic and supportive of these

         12  regulations, and I hope that it has been in part by

         13  that that we have had, and will continue to have

         14  such a productive dialogue, in working towards

         15  coming up with the best regulations for the members

         16  of the City of New York.

         17                 Just a little bit of background, Mr.

         18  Chairman, as to why I am here for the first time. I

         19  am definitely appearing at the ball a little bit

         20  late, that is to be sure, but within the last week,

         21  the pedicab industry, having seen Intro. 75, 331,

         22  and the emergence of 75-A and 331-A, has finally

         23  realized that the process is moving along extremely

         24  quickly and it is important for them to unify and to

         25  speak to this Committee and to the City with one
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          2  voice.

          3                 And, so, today, rather than having a

          4  panel, like the taxicab industry had, I am alone

          5  speaking on behalf of the pedicab owners, to be able

          6  to make the point and demonstrate to the Committee

          7  that we are now unified and would like to be able to

          8  speak to you productively with one voice.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you list the

         10  owners that you're representing?

         11                 MR. MARLOW: Yes. If I can ask if --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Afterwards.

         13                 MR. MARLOW: Yes, absolutely I will

         14  submit that to the Committee.

         15                 What I'd like to do to, and I

         16  appreciate your indulgence in getting through all of

         17  the issues on behalf of many of the owners, a few of

         18  whom actually are afraid that the regulations, if

         19  they go wrong, might cost them their living, I'm

         20  going to try to be as effective and efficient as

         21  possible, and perceive my testimony as if we were

         22  sitting in a private room discussing parts of the

         23  bill, because I think that that will be the most

         24  productive way to get through the many issues that

         25  are before you.
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          2                 To the extent that I don't mention

          3  particular issues in the bill, that is because we

          4  find them not objectionable and there is no need to

          5  waste time speaking about issues we do care about.

          6                 Let me start with the issue, and all

          7  of these are, by the way, in the packet that I

          8  passed out to you, hopefully that will help you with

          9  this meeting, I want to start with the issue of

         10  adopting a uniformed definition of pedicab. While

         11  all versions of the pedicab regulation bill specify

         12  that pedicabs must be propelled by human power, only

         13  75-A expressly prohibits any form of engine or motor

         14  from being used to assist drivers.

         15                 The New York City Pedicab Owners

         16  Association believes that prohibiting the use of

         17  electric-assist pedicabs is unfair, unwise and

         18  unwarranted, and let me explain why.

         19                 No one, especially NYCPOA, wants to

         20  see a day come when one can attach a rickshaw to a

         21  motorcycle and call it a pedicab. This is why the

         22  industry favors a middle-ground definition of

         23  pedicabs that allows drivers to be assisted by a

         24  minimal amount of electric power, while prohibiting

         25  the operation of pedicabs without the application of
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          2  human power.

          3                 Finding reasonable middle grounds

          4  that satisfy the concerns of all parties is the key

          5  to making good law. The Association is pleased to

          6  offer what we believe to be such a solution.

          7                 The NYCPOA believes a definition of

          8  pedicab should be adopted that permits the

          9  simultaneous use of both human and electric power.

         10  More specifically, the definition of pedicab should

         11  ensure that the only pedicab that can legally

         12  operate in New York City, or either solely human

         13  powered or are electric-assist pedicabs whose

         14  manufacturer initially installed what are called

         15  "pedal-activated sensing equipment."

         16                 This equipment, which is already

         17  widely used by New York City pedicabs, prevents a

         18  pedicab from utilizing its electric power unless it

         19  is being actively pedaled by its driver. Permitting

         20  the use of only pedal-activated electric power will

         21  satisfy the universal desire that pedicabs remain

         22  bicycle powered.

         23                 Of course, without limiting the

         24  degree to which pedicabs can be electrically

         25  assisted, such regulations would be ineffective.
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          2  That is why the association suggests that the City

          3  Council adopts regulations that require all pedicabs

          4  using pedal-activated electric power to meet the

          5  federal definition of low-speed electric bicycle.

          6                 By mandating the adherence to the

          7  Consumer Product Safety Commission's definition of

          8  "low-speed electric bicycles," pedicabs could be

          9  assisted by no more than one horsepower, which is

         10  750 watts of electric power. To put that amount of

         11  power in perspective, the average electric lawnmower

         12  operates on between one and two horsepower. This

         13  little electric boost would therefore by no means

         14  provide a lot of power, especially when one

         15  considers that the Taxi and Limousine Commission

         16  allows taxis to operate on up to 220 horsepower.

         17                 Of equal importance limiting electric

         18  assist pedicabs to one horsepower or less of pedal

         19  activated power would ensure that all pedicabs

         20  operate in New York City meet the New York State

         21  Department of Motor Vehicles' definition of a

         22  bicycle.

         23                 As Dinah Crossway, Assistant Counsel

         24  to the New York State DMV wrote to our association

         25  on December 8, 2006, and I quote, "If a
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          2  three-wheeled bicycle is manufactured as a motorized

          3  bicycle, i.e., a three-wheel bicycle manufactured

          4  and sold with the motor, then DMV will consider it

          5  to be a bicycle within the meaning of detailed

          6  section 102, if the bicycle must be continually

          7  powered by human muscular power in order to be

          8  propelled.

          9                 In other words, if the motorized

         10  bicycle is an electric-assist bicycle that provides

         11  motorized assistance pedaling and it cannot be

         12  operated solely by motor power, then the DMV views

         13  the vehicle a bicycle that may be operated on the

         14  public highways without registration."

         15                 The Association believes that all

         16  pedicabs should be bicycle powered, and because the

         17  aforementioned definitions of pedicab meet the

         18  federal and New York State definitions of a bicycle,

         19  such a definition should be acceptable for the New

         20  York City Council's pedicab regulations as well.

         21                 As a final note on this issue, the

         22  Association believes that New Yorkers are best

         23  served by having their pedicabs operated whenever

         24  possible by experienced professional career pedicab

         25  drivers, and that human power, exclusive definitions
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          2  would have the effect of ensuring all pedicab

          3  drivers are inexperienced young drivers who view

          4  operating a pedicab as a temporary career choice.

          5                 Our industry has many drivers in

          6  their 40s and 50s who simply could not continue to

          7  driver their pedicabs without the benefit of an

          8  electric-assist power.

          9                 For older drivers, and those with

         10  disabilities, pedaling 500 or more pounds of

         11  passengers up a hill after already driving five

         12  hours on the day is impossible without a little

         13  help. The definition of pedicab should seek to

         14  preserve these persons' careers, not end them.

         15                 One final note before moving onto the

         16  next is with regard to the statements of Council

         17  Member Gennaro. Council member, I completely and

         18  wholeheartedly and the Association agrees with the

         19  concerns you expressed. They are entirely

         20  legitimate. Quite frankly, they're frightening to

         21  the industry as well. Pedicabs are not designed to

         22  operate with car engines. The pedicab industry

         23  doesn't want car engines in them, and that would not

         24  be wise and it would certainly be dangerous.

         25                 It's very important to realize, and
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          2  the issue came up, and your point has been very well

          3  taken, whether it's a bicycle or not is defined by

          4  law as a legal definition, that really in the

          5  practical world has very limited applicability.

          6                 What we hope happens in realizing

          7  that the engines cannot operate without it being

          8  pedaled and with using only a one horsepower engine,

          9  that to draw a comparison, pedicabs are somewhere

         10  between a bicycle and a lawnmower, and very much not

         11  like another motor vehicle. Hopefully that is a

         12  solution that's satisfactory. If not, we certainly

         13  look forward to speaking with you and trying to

         14  address the concerns you have, because I don't want

         15  to in any way suggest by saying that we need these

         16  electric-powered bicycles, to suggest that your

         17  concerns are anything but extraordinarily important

         18  to us as well.

         19                 Let me now move on to some other

         20  issues in the bill.

         21                 The issue of a pedicab operator's and

         22  driver's license requirements. The Association

         23  supports the requirement that pedicab drivers hold a

         24  specialized pedicab driver's license. We only have

         25  two objections to the various versions of the law
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          2  that are being considered.

          3                 First, while we believe that pedicab

          4  drivers need to carry reliable forms of

          5  identification that meet the exacting standards of

          6  the New York Police Department, and while we agree

          7  that pedicab drivers should possess a knowledge of

          8  the rules of the road that is the same required of

          9  motor vehicle drivers, we do not see the need to

         10  require all pedicab drivers to hold a valid state

         11  driver's license.

         12                 Instead, requiring pedicab drivers to

         13  hold a motor vehicle learner's permit, will provide

         14  them with reliable State identification, require

         15  them to pass a written test regarding the rules of

         16  the road, and to pass a vision test, without

         17  requiring the drivers, many of whom do not own cars,

         18  to pay for motor vehicle driving lessons, which

         19  really don't make one a better pedicab driver, and a

         20  State driver's license.

         21                 The State driver's license

         22  requirement, though based on very sound principles,

         23  requires more than is necessary to meet the concerns

         24  behind the requirement.

         25                 Second, the Association supports
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          2  Intro. 331 and 331-A's requirement that drivers must

          3  meet a fitness test to be determined by the Consumer

          4  Affairs Commissioner.

          5                 Intro. 75, 75-A's requirement that

          6  they pass a character and fitness test, is a little

          7  bit vague for comfort and makes it seem more like

          8  our drivers are applying for a license to practice

          9  law than to drive a pedicab.

         10                 As for the issue of limiting the

         11  total number of pedicabs in New York City, the

         12  limitation on the number of pedicabs that would be

         13  allowed to operate varies from Intro. 75 which does

         14  not call for any limitations, to 75-A which places

         15  the limitation at 300, to Intro 331-A which simply

         16  allows the Commissioner to set a limit.

         17                 From the sale of computers to

         18  supporting goods to dentistry services to pedicab

         19  rides, the best way to ensure neither an undersupply

         20  nor oversupply of a good or service exists, is to

         21  allow the demand generated in a free market to

         22  naturally control supply? In the pedicab industry,

         23  if not enough pedicabs exist, demand will remain

         24  unmet and more pedicabs will enter the market. On

         25  the other hand, if too many pedicabs enter the
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          2  market, then supply will outstrip demand, prices

          3  will fall, and various pedicab owners will go out of

          4  business until an equilibrium is achieved. This

          5  approach, which is the one favored by Intro. 75, is

          6  the one favored by the NYCPOA.

          7                 The 300 pedicab limit and 75-A seems

          8  completely arbitrary. In fact, there are more than

          9  300 pedicabs operating in New York right now and it

         10  would be an unfortunate exercise for the City

         11  Council or Department of Consumer Affairs to

         12  determine which pedicabs to take off the street and

         13  which owners and drivers should be denied their

         14  means of making a living.

         15                 Moreover, it seems contrary to the

         16  City's interest in reducing traffic in an

         17  environmental solution to seek to limit the number

         18  of traffic ebbing, environmentally sound pedicabs on

         19  the roads.

         20                 While limiting the number of cars on

         21  the roads sounds like a step in the right direction,

         22  limiting the number of pedicabs, seems like a step

         23  in precisely the wrong direction.

         24                 Finally, as to the idea of simply

         25  having the Commissioner decide the number of
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          2  allowable pedicabs, seems as unwise as it is

          3  unpredictable.

          4                 An anti-pedicab commissioner who is

          5  not answerable to any electorate might limit the

          6  number of pedicabs to 100, while a pro-pedicab

          7  commissioner might set the limit at 20,000. If the

          8  City Council does not itself want to set limits on

          9  the number of pedicabs, which is certainly the right

         10  court of action in our opinion, then it should not

         11  place that decision in the hands of others.

         12                 On the other hand, if the City

         13  Council is insistent on a cap, the figure arrived at

         14  can be the product of careful collaborative

         15  deliberation and not arbitrary decision making.

         16                 As to the issue of where pedicabs can

         17  operate in the City of New York, the NYCPOA greatly

         18  prefers 75, 75-A's approach of not enacting such

         19  restrictions over that of Intro. 331, 331-A's choice

         20  of placing that decision in the hands of the

         21  Commissioner. It is important to point out that the

         22  Association does not believe it is entirely

         23  inappropriate to limit where pedicabs can solicit

         24  their passengers or in very limited number of safety

         25  driven situations, like tunnels, where they can
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          2  operate. That being said, such limits should be

          3  considered only after a far greater analysis of the

          4  pros and cons and such limitations, so as to ensure

          5  any adopted regulations are the product of

          6  considerable thought and extensive consideration.

          7                 In short, while the NYCPOA is open to

          8  exploring such limitations, trying to jam such a

          9  complex issue into this bill is imprudent.

         10                 The NYCPOA would request the Council

         11  adopt the approach of 75, 75-A by not adopting any

         12  restrictions at this time, and if it so chooses to

         13  revisit this particular complex issue at a later

         14  date.

         15                 On limiting the number of pedicab

         16  owners and business licenses per owner, all I really

         17  need to say on that issue is that we believe that

         18  limiting the amount of licenses that can be held by

         19  a single business owner is a mistake. Limiting the

         20  number of business licenses to 30, as 75-A does, we

         21  believe is unnecessary and arbitrary and will simply

         22  lead to the formation of multiple companies to own

         23  the licenses, just as taxi companies presently do to

         24  limit their liability and accidents.

         25                 On the issue of insurance
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          2  requirements, the insurance requirements proposed by

          3  75-A as well as 331, 331-A are acceptable to the

          4  Association, and as I believe, and it may have been

          5  you, Council Member Gennaro, pointed out, although

          6  it may have been someone else, we feel that what

          7  might be the best idea is to combine the two so that

          8  the requirements in 75-A can be applicable to

          9  ensuring single pedicabs, while those in 331, 331-A

         10  can be applicable to those ensuring entire fleets.

         11  And if that wasn't you, Council member, I apologize,

         12  but it was someone sitting to your left.

         13                 On the issue of pedicab training

         14  programs and written examinations, while the Pedicab

         15  Owners Association prefers 75/75-A's approach of

         16  offering training and pedicabs specific written

         17  exams to all pedicab drivers, we feel most strongly

         18  about the requirement that a pedicab specific

         19  written exam be required of all drivers.

         20                 The Pedicab Owners Association will

         21  be delighted to work with the City of New York and

         22  the Department of Consumer Affairs to prepare such

         23  exams, as well as the necessary study materials.

         24                 We sincerely hope that the City will

         25  take us up on this offer, and we urge the City
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          2  Council to consider placing language encouraging

          3  such just a joint endeavor in this bill.

          4                 On the issue of license suspension

          5  and revocation, the Association greatly prefers the

          6  331, 331-A approach of enumerating the various

          7  violations that can lead to license suspension or

          8  revocation over the more discretionary approach of

          9  75/75-A. What neither approach incorporates,

         10  unfortunately, is a method for distinguishing levels

         11  of violations, like the point system that exists for

         12  automobiles.

         13                 The Association believes a point

         14  system is far more precise way to track and punish

         15  regulation violators. Treating the running of a red

         16  light the same as the failure to turn one's lights

         17  on creates a system of penalties that is at the same

         18  time too harsh for some violations and too lenient

         19  for others.

         20                 In addition, the Association opposes

         21  75, 75-As requirement that a six-month suspension be

         22  given to drivers who commit five violations with a

         23  24-month period, because triggering a six-month

         24  suspension based on such a low number of infractions

         25  over such a long period of time creates the
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          2  likelihood that an inordinate number of suspensions

          3  may occur.

          4                 Likewise, we oppose 331, 331-A's

          5  license revocation requirement for five violations

          6  within a 12-month period, because revocation under

          7  such circumstances, which amounts to a three-year

          8  suspension is too harsh a penalty in light of the

          9  fact that in certain cases, many or all five

         10  violations might only be minor ones.

         11                 On the issues of fines and penalties,

         12  for the fines provided for the pedicab regulations

         13  bill, the New York City Pedicab Association has a

         14  preference for the graduated penalties found in the

         15  331 version of the bill than the 75 versions of the

         16  bill.

         17                 The association does not have a

         18  strong objection -- I'm sorry, does have a strong

         19  objection to owners and operators being held jointly

         20  and severally liable for fines, as called for in 331

         21  and 331-A.

         22                 The City Council would certainly not

         23  hold a taxicab owner responsible for paying a cab

         24  driver's traffic violation fines, and the pedicab

         25  industry really should be treated no differently.
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          2                 One area of the penalty section in

          3  331, 331-A that marks an important improvement over

          4  the 75, 75-A but does not go far enough is the $250

          5  fine and 15-day term of imprisonment applicable to

          6  pedicabs operating without an owner's license,

          7  driven without a pedicab's driver's license and

          8  operated by intoxicated drivers.

          9                 These three violations, in NYCPOA's

         10  view, are the most egregious of them all, and their

         11  penalties should reflect that fact.

         12                 While the 15-day imprisonment period

         13  called for is adequate, we would encourage the City

         14  Council to significantly increase the fine amount,

         15  as well as to require the immediate impoundment of

         16  any pedicab used in any of these three violations.

         17                 As to passenger limitations, none of

         18  the four versions of the pedicab regulation bills

         19  agree on passenger limitations at this time. In

         20  descending order they call for no limitations, a

         21  four-passenger limitation, three-passenger

         22  limitation and two adults plus one child under three

         23  years old limitation.

         24                 Consistent with the insurance

         25  specifications that apply to our industry in New
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          2  York City, the Association supports a limitation of

          3  three adult passengers or two adults plus two

          4  children.

          5                 One development in 331, 331-A deals

          6  with the application of vendor laws to New York City

          7  pedicabs.

          8                 In fact, what it does is it makes

          9  clear that these vendors laws should not be applied

         10  to vendor cabs and we applaud the addition of this

         11  language, as these laws have been used unfortunately

         12  to harass pedicab drivers operating in the City.

         13  And, so, we strongly support 331, 331-A's inclusion

         14  of language that makes clear that the City's general

         15  vendor laws do not apply to pedicabs.

         16                 Finally, with regard -- oh, I'm

         17  sorry, two more to go. With regard to required

         18  equipment, the Association supports the equipment

         19  requirements enumerated in Intro. 331-A with the

         20  following exceptions:

         21                 1) The seating capacity, as I just

         22  said, should provide for a maximum of three adults

         23  or two adults plus two children.

         24                 2nd) turn lights should not be

         25  required, as they are difficult to maintain and not
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          2  a big safety improvement over the hand signals that

          3  are currently required by law.

          4                 3) Seat belts should be required to

          5  protect all passengers, but the law should not

          6  necessarily require one for each passenger; and

          7                 4) Posting a sign stating the rates

          8  charged and how they be calculated is simply not

          9  possible, given the number of variables that go into

         10  establishing the rate. Instead, what we would

         11  support is a posting of a sign clearly visible on

         12  the outside of each pedicab that states the drivers

         13  and passengers are required by law to agree upon a

         14  total fare or hourly rate far prior to the

         15  commencement of each ride.

         16                 Finally, on the issue of restrictions

         17  on operation, in addition to my prior comments on

         18  passenger limitations and driver's license

         19  requirements, we have no objections to the

         20  restrictions found in 331-A except for the

         21  following:

         22                 1) limitations applicable to pedicabs

         23  for operating in parks, and on property controlled

         24  by the Parks Department, should be no different than

         25  those applicable to bicycles and taxis.
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          2                 Although the Association would not

          3  object to precisely worded restrictions on

          4  soliciting passengers in certain of these areas.

          5                 2) Although the Association does not

          6  understand the rationale for prohibiting pedicabs

          7  from operating on bridges, we would accept a

          8  prohibition against transporting passengers on

          9  bridges, so long as drivers themselves are permitted

         10  to transport their empty pedicabs across bridges to

         11  and from where they may be going to work.

         12                 Finally, pedicabs should be given 72,

         13  not 24 hours, to submit accident reports to the

         14  Commissioner, as it's often difficult to obtain a

         15  report within 24 hours.

         16                 With that, I want to greatly thank

         17  the Committee for all its work and to just be clear

         18  that we know that this is a rapidly summarizing

         19  process, which is something that we want as well,

         20  but that we hope to continue to work with you as you

         21  continue to draft the final version of this bill,

         22  and I thank you for your time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         24  Gennaro has some questions.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2  Thank you. It's nice to meet you.

          3                 Yes, I think I disagree with your

          4  last statement that this is a -- what was your last

          5  statement, it's rapidly closing, what was it?

          6                 MR. MARLOW: Well, that the bill we're

          7  working on is rapidly closing to when it becomes

          8  law.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay. I don't

         10  know about that. I mean, again, that's an issue for

         11  the leadership, it's an issue for the Chairman, but

         12  I, you know, continue to, again, I'm one member of

         13  this Committee, but I continue to have significant

         14  differences with what all the bills call for.

         15                 Let me just ask you a question about

         16  helmets.

         17                 Now, you believe that these are

         18  bicycles, as stipulated by law.

         19                 MR. MARLOW: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: So, if

         21  they're bicycles, would not all the occupants be

         22  required to wear helmets to be compliant with New

         23  York State's bicycle helmet laws?

         24                 MR. MARLOW: No. There is no helmet

         25  law applicable to bicycles in New York City.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 MR. MARLOW: I believe maybe ones for

          4  children, but I don't believe to adults.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I've been

          6  corrected in that the law is for 14 and under.

          7                 MR. MARLOW: That may be correct. My

          8  understanding is just with regard to adults, but we

          9  would comply with whatever law there was in terms of

         10  helmets.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: What would

         12  you position be towards requiring occupants 14 and

         13  under to wear helmets?

         14                 MR. MARLOW: I don't believe the

         15  association has an opinion on that at this time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Also, you're

         17  characterization of only one of the bills placing

         18  restrictions on the electric assisted seems to run

         19  counter to what the Administration's testimony was

         20  as I understood it, that their bill would not allow

         21  any electric assisted pedicabs also; was that your

         22  understanding of their testimony?

         23                 MR. MARLOW: Actually that struck me

         24  as curious too.

         25                 What I'd suggest you take a look at,
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          2  which is what was revealing for me, is that the

          3  language on the issue of human power in 75-A and

          4  331, and 331-A is identical except that 75-A

          5  actually says cannot use a motor or electric power.

          6                 So, my feeling is that the absence,

          7  the language doesn't say human power only. 75-A says

          8  human power only, the other two don't. So, my

          9  feeling is either it's a case of inaccurate

         10  draftmanship or kind of a changing of opinion on the

         11  fly. But I think that, you know, I'm an attorney by

         12  training, and so if I look at two descriptions and

         13  they're exactly the same except for one provision

         14  saying no electric, to me there is implications

         15  there.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay. But

         17  certainly it's significant that this is what the

         18  Commissioner articulated at the hearing, so the

         19  conclusion that I would draw from that is that there

         20  is -- that none of the revised bills on the table

         21  would allow for the electric-assisted. I'll just put

         22  that out there. That's why I believe the landscape

         23  is now.

         24                 MR. MARLOW: Okay. I think that

         25  probably one thing that we agree on is that
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          2  irrespective in the final bill the language should

          3  be perhaps more clear than it is, just to make sure

          4  that that's true. But, you know, all the other

          5  points notwithstanding, I think that's right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: If you could

          7  just expand a little bit on your point that the

          8  pedicab operator shouldn't have to possess a valid

          9  New York State driver's license? What kind of

         10  licensure should they have?

         11                 MR. MARLOW: I believe that a

         12  learner's permit would -- where I come from, Council

         13  member, and if I'm incorrect, you know, please do

         14  correct me, my feeling was that the purpose for

         15  having a driver's license was two-fold: One, the New

         16  York City Police Department, or any other law

         17  enforcement agency, needs a reliable form of

         18  identification if they were to pull someone over and

         19  try to cite them with a violation or something like

         20  that. So that's one need.

         21                 The other need is that if these

         22  vehicles are going to be operating on the roads of

         23  the City and State of New York, that these people

         24  need to demonstrate, clearly demonstrate a knowledge

         25  of the laws that govern those roads.
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          2                 The only distinction, and of course

          3  there's a vision test as well, the only distinction

          4  then between going in and getting a learner's

          5  permit, which requires you to take that test,

          6  requires the vision test, and a driver's license, is

          7  that you have to take lessons and demonstrate the

          8  ability to operate an automobile, and it's only on

          9  that basis that I think that that one additional

         10  provision, which would add hundreds and hundreds of

         11  dollars of cost, may not be necessary to meet the

         12  concerns of the drafters of the bill.

         13                 If I'm correct in that regard, then I

         14  would think that a learners permit would accomplish

         15  the goals. If I'm incorrect in the goals, then

         16  perhaps that's not accurate.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Again, I just

         18  wanted you to make an attempt to put some substance

         19  on a position that no disrespect intended is

         20  laughable, and so it's mind-boggling -

         21  mind-boggling, for-hire vehicles taking passengers,

         22  it's just one more crazy, insane aspect of this

         23  whole thing that completely defies logic. This

         24  hearing on some levels has been like an out-of-body

         25  experience, people trying to make sense out of
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          2  things that don't make a damn bit of sense. And, so,

          3  that is just, add that to the parade, add that to

          4  the parade of just silliness.

          5                 MR. MARLOW: Council Member, I

          6  actually respect your opinion. If I can just add

          7  something in that vain that hopefully is positive,

          8  one of the things that the Association has been

          9  pushing for is actually specific training and exams

         10  for pedicab drivers, and so if we could get that,

         11  that's something we would like. And you know, maybe

         12  that would be a very good solution, because then

         13  they're essentially taking the motor vehicle license

         14  equivalent but for pedicab. So, that is something we

         15  would like to see, and hopefully that's a little

         16  less out of body.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Any sanity

         18  that anyone could provide to this process would be

         19  most welcome.

         20                 MR. MARLOW: I hope that I can.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Including our

         22  Chairman who called for and continues to advocate

         23  for to his credit, stands for these, you know,

         24  stands, where they would be deployed from stands,

         25  like you have, the horse-drawn cabs or whatever it
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          2  is they want, that kind of thing, you go to the

          3  stand and that's where they're dispatched from.

          4                 MR. MARLOW: I think stands are an

          5  excellent idea. I'm not certain if they necessarily

          6  need to be the exclusive way of getting pedicabs,

          7  but I think the idea of pedicab stands, and I know

          8  the Association feels this way, it would be a great

          9  addition for the City of New York.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I applaud the

         11  Chairman for his belief that that is one possible

         12  way that would be sort of less crazy than the

         13  obvious violation of the street hail paradigm that

         14  we have now, which is the sole domain of the yellow

         15  taxis, which is a covenant that this City entered

         16  into with that industry, and I see street hails by

         17  pedicabs or any other entity as violation of the

         18  paradigm that we have struck with this industry. It

         19  is. It is. Everyone is pretending like it isn't, but

         20  it absolutely is. And everyone is going to have all

         21  kinds of good reasons why it's okay to do it and we

         22  should like it and whatever, but this is -- New York

         23  City took it upon itself to create this structure to

         24  do that. We wanted to do it. We did it. And now

         25  we're like poised to break it, and it's just, that's
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          2  a fact that just has to be recognized. And I think

          3  you're doing a good job representing the industry,

          4  but it is something which is, just has to be

          5  recognized more than I think it's currently being

          6  recognized.

          7                 MR. MARLOW: Well, Council Member, if

          8  I may just on that point, I know that, obviously,

          9  one of the areas in which you have a kind of an

         10  expertise and a specialty in which is very well

         11  recognized is on the issue of long-term

         12  sustainability in this City.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         14                 MR. MARLOW: And, so, I certainly

         15  agree with you that a long time ago the City did

         16  make a decision at the time to have motorized

         17  vehicle yellow cabs be the sole vehicle for picking

         18  up and distributing rides in the City. But what I

         19  would suggest is, that in light of the environmental

         20  and traffic problems that we face today in 2006,

         21  that it might not be the worst thing to consider

         22  revisiting that.

         23                 I mean, any great idea does not

         24  become less great if it's revisited to see whether

         25  or not it still applies to modern-day New York. So,
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          2  your point is well taken, but --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And here is

          4  how we're doing that, we just passed a couple of

          5  bills out of the Council the other day, and the

          6  Mayor, as I said, previously has advanced green

          7  medallions, and so this Council and this

          8  Administration has put a lot of time and energy into

          9  how we can green the taxi fleet to do hybrids but

         10  give people the safety and securing that they need

         11  in any ride. And, so, this Council and this

         12  Administration has seemed to work within the

         13  paradigm that we created with the taxi industry to

         14  move those medallions from regular fuel or to

         15  alternative fuel or hybrid propulsion. And this is

         16  something that this Council takes seriously, we're

         17  going to continue to do that, but anything that just

         18  outright just breaks the stone and cleaves the stone

         19  and says, look, this thing that we've established

         20  with the taxi industry, we're just not going to

         21  honor that anymore, because we're going to allow,

         22  you know, unimpeded street hails by these other

         23  entities, it just strikes me as something that the

         24  City shouldn't be doing now.

         25                 I think you're a great advocate, I
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          2  don't want to belabor things. The Chairman

          3  understand where I'm coming from, the leadership

          4  understands where I'm coming from, everybody in this

          5  room understands where I'm coming from, and I just

          6  want to thank you also for the one part of your

          7  testimony which you indicated you would advocate for

          8  tougher penalties with regard to certain violations.

          9                 MR. MARLOW: Absolutely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I think

         11  that's very responsible on your part. And with that

         12  said, I thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your indulgence

         13  and I thank you, sir, for your testimony.

         14                 MR. MARLOW: Thank you, sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, thank you,

         16  Council Member Gennaro. I do understand where you're

         17  coming from. I have some general questions. Do you,

         18  as representing the owners, and you've heard from

         19  the taxis, the hotel industry, now the theater

         20  industry, do you think that pedicabs pose any unique

         21  traffic or congestion concerns?

         22                 MR. MARLOW: No. Quite to the

         23  contrary. I would say to borrow an unpopular phrase

         24  from the NRA but to change it, pedicabs don't cause

         25  traffic, traffic causes traffic.

                                                            124

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Whoa. That's a

          3  bad reference in this room.

          4                 MR. MARLOW: No, but I'm saying

          5  pedicabs don't cause traffic, traffic causes

          6  traffic.

          7                 If you want to look at and see what

          8  the causes of traffic are across the City, I think

          9  everyone understands it is first and foremost the

         10  automobile, of which taxis are one, and, you know,

         11  buses and the like. And, so, I don't think -- if

         12  anything, I think that pedicabs are a solution to

         13  the environmental and traffic problems facing this

         14  City.

         15                 Also, at the same time, I think it's

         16  very important to recognize that despite the strong

         17  comments of the taxi industry, I guess that are more

         18  based on economic competition for them than anything

         19  else, pedicabs are not competitors to taxis. We are

         20  slow moving, although nimble vehicles, and we charge

         21  rates that are, as they themselves pointed out,

         22  three, four, five times what a taxi charges. So, I

         23  really don't think that -- I think that not only are

         24  we an improvement to traffic and transportation in

         25  the City, but we're also as a practical matter,
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          2  aside from the, you know, break it down in the

          3  simple, will they both ride on the roads and solicit

          4  passengers, beyond that I think the comparisons

          5  really break down.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Marlow, it's

          7  just you and I talking here, I mean you've heard

          8  from the hotel industry, you've heard from the

          9  theater industry, now they're both considering and

         10  upset with both bills because they don't ban

         11  pedicabs from midtown, and you're going to sit here

         12  and tell me that they don't pose any congestion or

         13  traffic concerns? You know, let's talk.

         14                 MR. MARLOW: No, I understand your

         15  point, Mr. Chairman. And in all fairness, anything

         16  that you add to the streets will cause more traffic

         17  and congestion problems.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, you think

         19  that the pedicabs that are laying in hotel lanes and

         20  laying in movie theater and Broadway theater lanes,

         21  are not creating congestion?

         22                 MR. MARLOW: As I said, anything,

         23  pedicabs included, that are added to the roads, for

         24  example the 150 --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: No, I'm not
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          2  talking about movement, I'm talking about sitting.

          3  I've personally observed pedicabs sitting in front

          4  of hot locations, not to say that I haven't

          5  personally observed black cars sitting in front of

          6  hotels or theaters or cabs sitting in front of

          7  locations that they can get in front of, but clearly

          8  you can't tell me today that nobody in the industry

          9  that's transporting people does not try to take an

         10  opportunity to get an exclusive venue at a location.

         11  I can tell you that's not true.

         12                 MR. MARLOW: No, and by no means, Mr.

         13  Chairman, I'm trying to say that. Let me try to be

         14  maybe a little --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What I'm asking

         16  you about, unique traffic or congestion concerns,

         17  and you're trying to regulate an industry and we're

         18  trying to have an open, honest discussion, I mean I

         19  think that we need to be clear about what those

         20  problems are, so that we can resolve them up front,

         21  as opposed to having to negotiate this for another

         22  six months to a year.

         23                 MR. MARLOW: Well, I agree, Mr.

         24  Chairman. But what I would say is, is that it's

         25  important to look at this issue holistically, which
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          2  is to say that when you're talking about a pedicab,

          3  and you're saying we really need to deal with how

          4  many we put on the streets, in terms of what that

          5  does for congestion, the City is issuing 150 new cab

          6  licenses to generate more money. Now, I would argue

          7  that 150 pedicabs is going to cause a lot less

          8  traffic congestion sitting in front of a hotel or a

          9  theater than 150 additional taxicabs. So, I think

         10  that we need to reexamine the entire paradigm. Not

         11  to say we're going to continue to turn out taxi

         12  after taxi after taxi and then try to find some

         13  other industry to limit, to compensate for that

         14  fact.

         15                 And, so what I'm saying is that

         16  rather than, you know, it's pennywise pound foolish,

         17  rather than cut down on the pedicabs right now, the

         18  City Council to take a holistic approach and we

         19  really want to look at the congestion that all these

         20  things are causing when they're sitting in front of

         21  hotels or theaters, what's the best route to go?

         22                 And, so, my point is, yes, they cause

         23  congestion when they're sitting there, yes they

         24  block the roads, but they do so less than the

         25  equivalent number of other vehicles. So, the City
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          2  Council should really look broadly before it decides

          3  just to deal with this issue only on an approach to

          4  pedicabs.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, but you all

          6  acknowledge that there is blockages going on that

          7  has aggravated people to the point where they want

          8  to ban pedicabs from midtown.

          9                 MR. MARLOW: Yes. What I would say is

         10  short of that, I think it would be appropriate for

         11  the Council to discuss particular places where they

         12  feel that the solicitation of passengers by pedicabs

         13  is inappropriate. I think that that is a discussion

         14  that needs to be had. I don't in any way want to

         15  suggest that the Association is closed off to the

         16  idea of certain areas in the City, which is just not

         17  practicable to allow pedicabs to pick up passengers.

         18  That being said, I think to the extent that has to

         19  be done, it should be done with a very narrow focus,

         20  which I'm sure the City Council would do. But, yes,

         21  I think that is something that is worthy of further

         22  discussion.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. I'll come

         24  back to that in a minute. I just wanted to run

         25  through your testimony.
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          2                 You talked about the issue of

          3  electric-powered, or electric-pedal-assist engines,

          4  and you're referring to, on page three of your

          5  testimony, by Dinah Crossway, the Assistant Counsel

          6  to the New York State DMV --

          7                 MR. MARLOW: Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have a

          9  copy of that exact wording from her, because this is

         10  paraphrasing what she said?

         11                 MR. MARLOW: Actually, it's a direct

         12  quote, but I do believe I have a copy on me. Rather

         13  in the interest of time, can I provide that to the

         14  Committee?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

         16                 MR. MARLOW: But I will certainly do

         17  so.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         19                 MR. MARLOW: But that's not a

         20  paraphrase, that's a direct quote.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, I

         22  appreciate that. That's something that we're going

         23  to have to work on. Clearly, the Administration is

         24  not interested in electric power at all. You're

         25  talking about low-speed bicycles here, that's
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          2  something that we're going to have to seriously

          3  consider before we move, and hopefully we can get

          4  that dealt with.

          5                 Just on the next part, your issues

          6  regarding driver's license requirements, I don't

          7  think are strong enough, and many people that are

          8  taking the driver's license permit application still

          9  fail a test, and I think that just having a vehicle

         10  learner's permit, which is not, I don't think,

         11  renewable, it's not really enough requirement in

         12  this type of environment, in a City such as New

         13  York. I'm not in agreement with you on that

         14  particular position.

         15                 MR. MARLOW: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The issue on

         17  limiting the total number of cabs, I think that's

         18  something that we will be dealing with general

         19  negotiation on, and the issue of actual number of

         20  pedicabs out there, do you have a closer number of

         21  actual amount of pedicabs that are on the road right

         22  now?

         23                 MR. MARLOW: The best number I can

         24  give you is somewhere between 400 and 500.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And how many of
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          2  those are the new all-plastic unicab?

          3                 MR. MARLOW: I'm sorry, can you repeat

          4  that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The plastic

          6  one-piece cab?

          7                 MR. MARLOW: Oh, I'm sorry, I don't

          8  have that information but I can get that to you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The insurance

         10  requirements also, just talking about that issue, I

         11  agree with the combination of it, I think that the

         12  bottom numbers need to be higher though, and

         13  matching what they are for, matching -- if they're

         14  going to be competing in the road with traffic, then

         15  they need to be able to be whatever the particular

         16  minimums are for the vehicle that's dealing in

         17  traffic on a regular basis, and I think these are

         18  numbers that are just dealing with regular

         19  automobiles and I think that's something that we

         20  need to talk about a little bit more as well.

         21                 The training program and written

         22  requirements, it's something that's a good idea for

         23  the industry and something that we should try to

         24  help work to put into play, as the earlier testimony

         25  from the May hearing, the Department of Consumer
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          2  Affairs was concerned about how that would happen

          3  and who would put that training together. I know

          4  that people came and testified that they had the

          5  ability to provide that training, I'm hoping that

          6  those conversations can be continued and enhanced

          7  with the City.

          8                 I think the more training that is

          9  given to the drivers above and beyond the driver

         10  license permit, a driver's license, not permit, is

         11  important.

         12                 MR. MARLOW: Yes, we wholeheartedly

         13  agree.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But I believe

         15  that the license is a critical minimum level of

         16  permit to be on the road.

         17                 There was just one other thing that I

         18  really wanted to talk about. Fines and penalties, I

         19  think we can negotiate that out. The type of

         20  violations and when the violations are enumerated

         21  and the suspensions I think can be negotiated out.

         22  The passenger limitations, I think that's something

         23  that has to be dealt with in a clear and irrevocable

         24  way because we need to make sure that the pedicabs

         25  are not taking on more than they're structurally
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          2  capable of taking on. I think that's a major issue.

          3                 And I've seen pedicabs personally

          4  that I was concerned about how they were going to

          5  make it to their particular destination.

          6                 The seat belt issue, can you talk

          7  about that a little bit more? You're saying that the

          8  seat belt should be required to protect all

          9  passengers, not one for each passenger?

         10                 MR. MARLOW: Yes. The only feeling on

         11  that is that there might be a possibility of putting

         12  a restraint that covers the entire seat rather than

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Kind of like what

         15  they do on the carnival rides, where you click in

         16  and that type of restraint?

         17                 MR. MARLOW: I guess in theory, yes,

         18  something like that. But I would think, you know, if

         19  it was a safety belt of some kind that was adequate

         20  to restrain more than one person in the back seat.

         21  As long as the belt itself is sufficient to protect

         22  the safety of the passengers, then I don't think it

         23  necessarily would have to be one for each passenger.

         24  But, again, that's up to the judgment of the

         25  Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And the sign on

          3  rates, I don't understand why that couldn't work,

          4  but it works for taxis. They don't know where their

          5  passengers are going until after they get in, I'm

          6  not really comfortable with doing anything less than

          7  that.

          8                 I think that, I almost went through

          9  everything else. I don't know if my Counsel had

         10  anything they wanted to add, but I appreciate you

         11  coming down. I appreciate the fact that the owners

         12  are coming together as a group on this because they

         13  did ask for regulation, and hopefully we can

         14  negotiate the rest of this stuff out, you know,

         15  early in January, so that we can vote this bill out.

         16                 MR. MARLOW: I greatly appreciate

         17  that, Mr. Chairman. And of course, the Association

         18  is willing to help, hopes to participate and is

         19  willing to help you out in any possible way, so we

         20  will look forward to you calling on us for an

         21  opportunity to help you and your work.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, we'll do

         23  what we can to meet as often as possible between now

         24  and the end of this particular period until we get

         25  this done.
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          2                 You okay, Councilman Gennaro?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, I just

          5  wanted to check if you had any other questions.

          6                 All right, Mr. Marlow -- Mr. Marlow,

          7  right?

          8                 MR. MARLOW: Yes, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         10  coming down. I look forward to meeting you at

         11  another time very soon.

         12                 MR. MARLOW: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Next we have

         14  Christian Farrell, 320 Sydam Street. I'm sorry if I

         15  mangled your last name.

         16                 George Haikalis, 1 Washington Square,

         17  Institute for Rational -- I can't read that either,

         18  and I've got on my glasses. Steve Stollman from 49

         19  East Houston Street, Light Wheels Public Expression.

         20                 All right, is the third person here?

         21                 MR. STOLLMAN: George Haikalis had to

         22  leave. I have his testimony here. I might quote a

         23  sentence or two from it. He was unfortunately unable

         24  to stay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, I
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          2  understand. Do you want to start with his testimony

          3  then, two sentences? And then identify yourself for

          4  the record, please.

          5                 MR. FARRELL: How you doing. I own

          6  three pedicabs. I drove one for like two and a half

          7  years, and now I rent them out.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry, can

          9  you identify your name, please?

         10                 MR. FARRELL: Christian Farrell. My

         11  company is Bike Central Park, Incorporated.

         12                 I was at a garage the other day at

         13  34th Street, and the first time I had been to the

         14  basement, there was over 100 pedicabs there, and

         15  I've to another garage that was 120. I have a thing

         16  that puts the number at 245. I have a little list.

         17  Oh, sorry, 545 pedicabs on the list.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: 545?

         19                 MR. FARRELL: 545. Some of those,

         20  somebody told me, some of the owners told me that

         21  Vela Taxi has like 100, the new ones, the white

         22  ones, they have 100 so that number includes that. I

         23  haven't seen those myself. I haven't seen those 100.

         24  So, I have that for you. And then my own experience,

         25  I stopped pedicabbing because of my back. You know,
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          2  I have problems with my back and my neck. I have a

          3  lot of pain. I think the assist-motors are 750

          4  watts, there's more power running that light. I

          5  don't think you should compare it to a lawnmower.

          6  It's like 700 watt lightbulbs. There's not all that

          7  much power. There is more power above me, you know,

          8  in these lightbulbs. And I think it's unethical to

          9  allow pedicabs to not allow a small motor, because

         10  sometimes we carry up to 1,000 pounds. You know, one

         11  example, if you have a 200 pound driver, the new

         12  cabs carry three passengers, a lot of the newer

         13  bikes are wider, they're the same width but they

         14  made the bike seat a little bit bigger over the

         15  wheels, and again, three passengers, so you have

         16  three 200-pound guys, the driver weighs 200 pounds,

         17  that's 800 pounds, the bike weighs 150 to 200

         18  pounds, you've got 1,000 pounds. A car weighs 3,000

         19  pounds, and they have, what do they have, 150

         20  horsepower motor, we're going to have 700 watts, 750

         21  watts, like seven lightbulbs helping us out so our

         22  back doesn't break, you know, and for a career

         23  thing, for something you're going to do for quite

         24  awhile, you know, I actually dressed up as King Kong

         25  and went out to the Christmas Tree last year, next
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          2  to Sponge Bob and all of them, to make a couple

          3  dollars, you know, as an alternative.

          4                 So, you know, this is something, I

          5  could have been pedicabbing, I actually don't use

          6  the motors because I didn't want to invest something

          7  that might be banned. But I think it's something

          8  that, you know, is really not that big of assist,

          9  it's a small assist, and it's just to take off the

         10  actual, huge amount of weight that you're carrying.

         11                 And then the other thing I want to

         12  say about, I agree with Chad, about 150 pedicabs, or

         13  500 pedicabs being less impacting than 500 cabs in

         14  Times Square. I think that area is like used,

         15  shouldn't be used as like a thruway or a highway to

         16  get downtown, it's like a destination and departure

         17  point for millions of pedestrians, and when you have

         18  -- you shouldn't have cars going 40 miles an hour

         19  through there. It's going to be congested and slow,

         20  because that's where people are going and departing

         21  from. They're going to and they're departing from.

         22                 So that was my feeling on that. But I

         23  do think that stand would be helpful in that area

         24  because it is chaotic during when the theater is

         25  letting out, and it's disruptive to the people that
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          2  own these theaters, and I understand why their upset

          3  about it, because you can see when you go there that

          4  it's not orderly, it's not -- I think it is a

          5  benefit to the area, but it should be done in a

          6  controlled way with a stand or something like that.

          7  It should be a protocol to how it happens in that

          8  area. And that's all I have to say. And I have this

          9  page, which talks about the numbers of pedicabs.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         11                 MR. FARRELL: I'll get you a copy of

         12  that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh, the Sergeant

         14  will take it, and there are some copies. Thank you

         15  for coming down.

         16                 Sir.

         17                 MR. STOLLMAN: Mr. Comrie. The last

         18  remaining member of the panel. My name is Steve

         19  Stollman. I have an organization called Local

         20  Expression, another one called Light Wheels. Local

         21  Expression is about New York City Transportation,

         22  and the balance of different elements of the

         23  Transportation system that we have.

         24                 Light Wheels, about trying to get

         25  wheels that don't weigh 8,000 pounds, that perhaps
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          2  weigh 80 pounds or 180 pounds, or something which is

          3  what I would call"human scale." And I think we have

          4  two issues here really, which is, one is

          5  human-powered transportation, the other is

          6  human-scale transportation, and amazingly, there are

          7  arguments about both, which I find just completely

          8  astonishing.

          9                 We have I think come to terms,

         10  especially Iris Weinshall made a dramatic speech at

         11  a conference a couple of weeks ago in regards to the

         12  balance of transportation elements in New York City,

         13  in which she promised to be much more aggressive and

         14  much more serious about establishing conditions

         15  under which various different modes of

         16  transportation, especially human-powered

         17  transportation and other forms of human scale

         18  transportation, like pedestrianization, would have a

         19  better environment in which to operate.

         20                 New York City, one of the reasons so

         21  many people come here and so many people want to

         22  live and do business here is because you have one of

         23  the most extraordinary pedestrian environments in

         24  the world, and we should not destroy that. We

         25  presently are destroying that by the congestion of

                                                            141

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  gas-spewing automobiles, not pedicabs or bicycles.

          3  Pedicabs and bicycles are being used basically as

          4  victims in order to avoid a real problem, which is

          5  that we have a transportation crisis in this City.

          6  And really, it's an economic crisis, and it goes

          7  beyond environment, it goes to health, and it's

          8  something which is so fundamental to our well-being

          9  and our survival that it needs to be approached with

         10  a much more serious level than let's see what we can

         11  do to protect the taxi industry's prerogatives at

         12  this time.

         13                 The Administration and this Committee

         14  have put forward bills which are kind of a mixed

         15  bag. I find elements of each that seem to be quite

         16  helpful and elements of each that seem to be

         17  disturbing.

         18                 I do not understand why you would

         19  want to, in contravention of federal and State law,

         20  limit 750 watt electric motors from being put on

         21  these pedicabs. The gentleman gave a very articulate

         22  presentation and the fact that this is a matter of

         23  the health of the people who are operating these

         24  machines.

         25                 Now, you could do something, which is
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          2  regulate the amount of motor power based on the

          3  amount of human power which is being put in. We now

          4  have the capacity to technologically, to suggest

          5  that you will not put say, for instance, more than

          6  50 percent of the power from an electric motor

          7  source. That means that what you have in effect is

          8  two people pedaling instead of one person pedaling.

          9  This is not the same as a three horsepower

         10  automobile (sic) thousands of pounds going down the

         11  street at 40 or 50 miles an hour. Making that

         12  comparison is ingenuous and fraudulent, frankly, and

         13  I think it should really not have been accepted so

         14  readily, or not challenged, because it's absurd. A

         15  750 watt electric motor is about as much as we can

         16  put out as a human being. It's like using both of

         17  your hands or both of your feet. It's not a matter

         18  of adding a huge motorized device which changes the

         19  character of this machine. It doesn't. It simply

         20  provides a certain measure of assistance.

         21                 The same thing goes with electric

         22  bicycles. As of now, electric bicycles per se, even

         23  though they're allowed by State and federal law, are

         24  not specifically permitted in New York City

         25  two-wheeled bicycles. They should be and they must
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          2  be. You have a responsibility to our health, our

          3  environment, and congestion, to encourage the

          4  development of different devices and different

          5  technologies that will enable us to get some relief

          6  from the incredible crisis that we currently enjoy.

          7                 This also brings up the question of

          8  multi peddlers. There was a problem in Times Square

          9  with certain vehicles operated by a certain

         10  individual which seemed to get under the skin of the

         11  Police Department and got under the skin of some

         12  other people because it seemed to be a difficult

         13  vehicle to deal with in that environment.

         14                 And as a result of that, you're going

         15  to make it, or either the Administration or this

         16  body, is going to make it impossible for more than

         17  one person to pedal a vehicle at the same time.

         18                 I think this is, again, absurd to the

         19  point of, I'll quote a Republican Senator in

         20  discussing Mr. Bush, "...verges on criminality."

         21  What happens if you have a vehicle where one person

         22  is blind? What happens if you have a vehicle where

         23  only one person can pedal adequately to get the

         24  vehicle around but needs two people to be able to

         25  get the vehicle around? They're just not strong
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          2  enough to do it. Why would you prevent more than one

          3  person from pedaling a vehicle at the same time? You

          4  will allow unlimited access to our space by Harley

          5  Davidsons that sound like, you know, they have no

          6  mufflers, to 40-foot hummers carrying idiots

          7  standing up inside, drunken teenagers, any number of

          8  buses, any number of trucks and any number of

          9  automobiles and any configuration, but you will not

         10  let two people pedal at the same time? I mean, there

         11  is a level of absurdity to this, frankly that

         12  suggests that you cannot really confront in a

         13  rational way.

         14                 Because I have heard no argument by

         15  anybody on this Committee, or any of the people that

         16  have testified, or anybody, that more than one

         17  person pedaling a bike at the same time is any kind

         18  of a hazard to the society. I would suggest that not

         19  having bicycles that more than one person can pedal

         20  is a hazard to this society and we have to remedy

         21  it, and you, the City Council, have to remedy that.

         22                 So, you are moving in the opposite

         23  direction of the one you should be moving in, not

         24  the proper direction in a particular regard of how

         25  many people should pedal a bike. And it should not

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  be in reaction to a particular configuration of a

          3  bike operating in any particular environment which

          4  happened to bug somebody.

          5                 This is a societal health,

          6  environmental concern of paramount importance. We

          7  are in the middle of a war to preserve our oil. That

          8  oil is being used to run all of these giant,

          9  oversized vehicles. We have very few avenues of

         10  escape from this trap that's been laid for us.

         11  Seventy-five years ago the automobile industry

         12  destroyed the public transit system in all the urban

         13  areas in the United States of America. They killed

         14  the trains and they did it mostly through political

         15  corruption.

         16                 Seventy-five years later we still

         17  have elements of the automobile industry protecting

         18  that monopoly. It's an illegal monopoly that was put

         19  into place through criminal activity, and legal

         20  bodies, such as the New York City Council, should

         21  not be providing any protection for illegal

         22  activities, whether they happened 75 years ago or

         23  they happened ten years ago or yesterday. This is

         24  supposed to be a law-making body, not law-breaking

         25  protection body.
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          2                 So, you know, what we have,

          3  unfortunately, this has been a long day and I think

          4  everybody really wants to go home, you don't need to

          5  hear things ten times, but in the areas of motors,

          6  please use rational judgment. There is no rational

          7  reason to prevent these 750 watt tiny motors from

          8  being attached.

          9                 When it comes to multiple pedalers,

         10  there is no rational reason to prevent multi

         11  pedalers. There is no rational reason to put a limit

         12  on the number of these vehicles, there is no

         13  rational reason to provide for more important safety

         14  measures, when it has not been demonstrated that

         15  there has not been any safety problem, accident

         16  problem. The accident problem is that our streets

         17  are overrun, very large, oversized, urban unfriendly

         18  vehicles, these people are making a brave attempt to

         19  bring us down to the human scale and using

         20  human-powered transportation. They should be

         21  encouraged and rewarded in every way and not

         22  punished and limited in their activities. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         24                 Next we're going to hear from James

         25  Muessig, Steven Newman, and Patrick Curran.
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          2                 Mr. Muessig, you're the only person

          3  here? Steven Newman left? Patrick Curran left? Okay.

          4                 We're going to call Shoshannah

          5  Pearlman, Andrew Wote.

          6                 And you're Mr. Korman?

          7                 MR. KORMAN: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Come on up.

          9                 MR. MUESSIG: Do I have to press the

         10  button?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You're on.

         12                 MR. MUESSIG: I remember that from

         13  last time. Sorry for the way I came dressed today. I

         14  was out on a bicycle this morning, carving out a new

         15  bicycle industry, that if it's successful, will land

         16  me here on the hot seat in front of your Committee

         17  in about two years.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for --

         19                 MR. MUESSIG: The heads up.

         20                 Like you -- did you get the

         21  presentation I sent you? If you could, I have my

         22  propaganda photos and all that there, if you could

         23  just turn to "Lack of Reason," because this is

         24  important.

         25                 I can tell you why you ought to
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          2  reject this multi-passenger-wheel device ban.

          3  Because they're trying to hide it in regulations to

          4  regulate the pedicab industry. If it has merit, why

          5  don't they just ask a Council member to introduce it

          6  solely by itself for what it is? Don't tag it on as

          7  the end paragraph to a bill that has a totally

          8  separate purpose.

          9                 I'd like to point out to you in the

         10  "Lack of Reason" page how this started. The first

         11  Intro. 331, the Commissioner of DOT came in here and

         12  said that these bikes are wider than a lane of

         13  traffic. Well, it's untrue. She repeated it the

         14  second hearing, and repeated it here at the third

         15  hearing. She can say it as many times as you want,

         16  but I know that a traffic lane in New York City is

         17  more than 72 inches wide. That's how wide these

         18  bikes are.

         19                 Actually, the Administration now says

         20  they think pedicabs that are 55 inches wide are

         21  cool. So, really what we're saying is that my bikes

         22  are this much bigger than what they're saying and

         23  that makes all the difference in the world.

         24                 Something else. They also said that

         25  conference bikes were a threat to pedestrians and
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          2  motor vehicles. Well, the conference bikes at best

          3  could possibly pop out at 15 miles an hour. Their

          4  average speed is about ten miles an hour. Walking

          5  speed is four miles an hour. How are these bikes a

          6  threat to pedestrians compared to all the other

          7  vehicles that are on the streets? They clearly

          8  aren't, and they haven't backed it up.

          9                 How are we a threat to other

         10  vehicles? Our bikes are slow moving and they weigh

         11  400 pounds. The other motor vehicles that are out

         12  there weigh many tons and are capable of speeds, I

         13  mean, truly in excess of 80 or 100 miles an hour.

         14  So, we're not a threat, and they wrote that in their

         15  memorandum of understanding to try to get you to

         16  pass this.

         17                 I'd like to point out the

         18  inconsistencies. You see the picture of the ZEMs,

         19  the Zero Emission Machines? They're identical. The

         20  four-person ZEM is about a foot longer, it's nine

         21  feet. But they're the same width. Under 331-A, the

         22  four-person ZEM would be illegal for you to operate

         23  in New York City. The two-person ZEM, which is an

         24  identically sized vehicle, would be legal. Now, why

         25  is the four-person ZEM unsafe and a hazard to New

                                                            150

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  Yorkers, but the two-person ZEM is suddenly safe?

          3                 It appears that my conference bike,

          4  if you read 331-A carefully, if I just took off five

          5  of the chains, it would be legal still, if I had two

          6  people pedaling it instead of seven. It would move

          7  any faster. It might move a little slower. I assure

          8  you that I have drivers that are capable of moving

          9  those passengers with just two chains. So, it

         10  doesn't my bike for width. Obviously that is not

         11  their concern. Actually if only two people are

         12  pedaling, the two-cycle ZEM, could make it as wide

         13  as we want, eight feet, nine feet, ten feet, under

         14  their law.

         15                 The other thing I'd like to point out

         16  is that 331 bans tandem bicycles. That's where all

         17  the wheels are in a line. Now, 331-A, suddenly they

         18  came back and they said, oh, we didn't mean to do

         19  that, most likely because Transportation

         20  Alternatives made some nasty phone calls to them, so

         21  now if the wheels are in line, you can put three

         22  people, four people or eight people. It's totally

         23  unlimited how many people you can put on a tandem

         24  bicycle if the wheels are in line.

         25                 Now, look at that photograph. How can
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          2  you tell me that it's safe to have this family of

          3  five doing a balancing act in New York City traffic,

          4  but if I have a trained driver with four wheels

          5  having them pedal through New York City, that is an

          6  unsafe hazard.

          7                 There is no logic. There is a lack of

          8  reason here. The truth of the matter is, is that my

          9  competitors, a founder and owner who has since

         10  passed away, a couple weeks after he testified to

         11  you, about please don't run me out of business, he

         12  mortgaged his homes and put all his money into party

         13  bike. He had a massive heart attack a few weeks

         14  after he testified here. He's gone. The feud with

         15  the Police Department is over. I can tell you just

         16  candidly, the two of us here, it was the Republican

         17  Convention, the police just said to Don, we told the

         18  Mayor everything is going to be nice and neat for

         19  this week, could you please take your bikes off the

         20  streets, and not only did he refuse to do it, he

         21  used language that was obscene and disrespectful to

         22  the Commander of Midtown South in front of his

         23  subordinate officer, and a feud began, which now

         24  ended in this legislation that's before you. But Don

         25  is gone, the scuttlebut on the street is that Party
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          2  Bike probably won't be operating after Christmas.

          3  His partner doesn't have any interest in it, and

          4  Don's minor daughter can't run it. So, really what

          5  we're talking about are my four bikes.

          6                 Now, I've given you all the reasons

          7  why you shouldn't do it, now someone is going to

          8  come back and call you and say, but if you legalize

          9  these things, if you allow him to get a license like

         10  the others, there will be thousands of them. You'll

         11  wake up and there will be conference bikes

         12  everywhere. Well, right now we're in unregulated

         13  wild west where anything can happen, and

         14  cooperatively pedaled pedicabs represent two percent

         15  of what's out there.

         16                 I would say that, you know how we

         17  have a lot of pizza places, but we only have a few

         18  pizza places that allow you to make your pizza, it's

         19  the same thing in the pedicab industry, you've got

         20  lots of pedicabs but only a few where it's for

         21  people who want to be part of the process. And I

         22  think that we're a benefit. Honestly, for four

         23  bikes, I wouldn't be doing it if I didn't think that

         24  I was contributing something good and not doing

         25  anything bad.
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          2                 Hello, Council Member Brewer. It's

          3  good to see you.

          4                 And since there are so few of us, I

          5  really don't think that the City Council ought to do

          6  this. And I want to thank you on 75-A for allowing

          7  cooperatively pedaled pedicabs. You'll notice 331-A

          8  specifically forbids it, and I noticed that the

          9  Commissioner of DOT, she doesn't mention that point

         10  to you as she outlined the things in 331-A to you,

         11  and obviously didn't give you a reason.

         12                 And there is something else. Mr.

         13  Comrie, you asked DOT at the first hearing how many

         14  multiple passenger wheel devices are in New York,

         15  you called them party bikes at the time, I'd like to

         16  know whether they got back to you on that? The

         17  answer from DOT then was I don't know. You then

         18  asked how many injuries had been reported, and the

         19  response was I don't know. And how many 4-1-1

         20  complaints are there? I'll get back to you. It's

         21  been a year now. If they have some good reason why

         22  these bikes ought to be banned, I think they would

         23  have brought this information to you. And you also

         24  asked them at the last hearing if there had been a

         25  study on their contribution to congestion, and you
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          2  were also told -- oh, no, the response to that was,

          3  you mean you want a study?

          4                 For all these reasons, it just

          5  smells. The whole thing smells. We're doing a good

          6  thing, and I think you just ought to allow us to

          7  continue our tiny little niche' responsibly. And

          8  that's pretty much all I have to say about that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. I

         10  don't know if you were here earlier. But I did ask

         11  those questions again and I was very disappointed

         12  that they did not have the answers as far as

         13  statistics or accidents or anything else. I don't

         14  understand why they haven't brought that forth, and

         15  I'll agree with you on those points. I want to thank

         16  you for coming back today and updating your

         17  testimony. And I'm sorry to hear about the passing

         18  of --

         19                 MR. MUESSIG: Mr. Demiti (phonetic).

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Demiti. My

         21  condolences to his family.

         22                 MR. MUESSIG: I'll pass them on to his

         23  daughter when I see her.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         25                 The next person.
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          2                 MR. WOTE: My name is Andrien Wote. I

          3  represent Wote Corporation. I am a pedicab driver,

          4  owner, independent owner. I tried this business

          5  since eight months to investigate, to know exactly

          6  how the business was run. We really welcome the

          7  process where we are in today. I am a student, and I

          8  use it as alternative part-time to back up my

          9  income.

         10                 I create a company last year before

         11  but I in my way to bankrupt (sic), but how the

         12  industry had me to come over (sic). We really

         13  appreciate all the effort that we brings up here in

         14  the table (sic), but there is one aspect to talking

         15  about the congestion of traffic, we have to look

         16  what time the pedicab industry. During the daytime

         17  you can observe there is no pedicab. In the rushhour

         18  we are in the street just to move the traffic

         19  around. That's a beautiful remark to check about.

         20                 And also, I don't think few pedicab

         21  could really take away the customer from the taxi

         22  drivers. We took only three passenger most the time,

         23  maybe two, but we always try to give the most for

         24  the size of the seating. It's not only the pleasure

         25  ride, our price is four times, very expensive than a
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          2  taxi. That give to the customer to have the

          3  alternative to choose either the transportation who

          4  is common taxicab driver or to take the bicycle

          5  ride, who is the pedicab.

          6                 To put a cut on the pedicab, maybe

          7  you drive us out. We have a lot of friend, school

          8  student who in the street, come up just to find some

          9  few money to pay their school fee, who use the

         10  pedicab. The motor help us enough when we work after

         11  five hours. If you just look, the New York City

         12  Marathon, how we try to move the City around, move

         13  people around, this have enough to the pedicab, to

         14  have the passenger understand that he need to be in

         15  the situation of transportation (sic).

         16                 That was just my point where I have

         17  to come over just to say we welcome to finalize

         18  earlier those events, those regulations, so that you

         19  could do the business in safety condition. But also

         20  be hard, difficult to us, we have to understand that

         21  some people over 50 years who try the pedicab,

         22  sometime they need assistance. Or they're under 30,

         23  they need assistance also. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         25                 Ma'am, you need the mic.
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          2                 MS. PEARLMAN: Thank you. My name is

          3  Shoshannah Pearlman. I want to thank you for your

          4  time and your attention. I also want to thank Mr.

          5  Marlow for representing us. He really has an amazing

          6  understanding of the industry, considering the short

          7  time he has had to understand the situation. I

          8  support everything he said.

          9                 I've been driving for three years.

         10  During that time, I've seen a deterioration of the

         11  relationship the industry has with other Manhattan

         12  stakeholders, which used to be a good, or if not, at

         13  least a neutral relationship, and has deteriorated,

         14  which I attribute to an influx of drivers without

         15  adequate training, or a system of accountability.

         16                 Now, a number of people today have

         17  expressed concerns that we drive in ways that are

         18  unsafe or contribute to congestion. And you yourself

         19  mentioned that we frequently stand in front of

         20  Broadway theaters, which could clog, congest

         21  traffic. Somebody else mentioned that it's dangerous

         22  for us to drive in the midst of quickly moving

         23  traffic. I'd like to emphasize that these practices

         24  are actually illegal. Most of the pedicabs standing

         25  in front of the shows are standing in "No Standing"
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          2  zones. It's illegal for a bicycle to ride in the

          3  middle of the road. They need to be along the side

          4  of the road where it's safe. The problem is that

          5  there really is no infrastructure for

          6  accountability. Many of the drivers don't even carry

          7  IDs. There is not a system of penalties and

          8  enforcement. Regulations are designed to implement

          9  that. Drivers would actually be accountable for

         10  breaking the law, and by imposing that system of

         11  accountability, most of these problems which are,

         12  and I freely admit, very evident any time someone

         13  goes down to Times Square after a show, many of

         14  these problems with proper enforcement would

         15  disappear.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That's it?

         17                 MS. PEARLMAN: That's it. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. You have

         19  been the shortest one today. I'm sorry. Thank you.

         20                 Sir.

         21                 MR. KORMAN: Yes, Chairman Comrie, I

         22  just want to start thanking you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you say your

         24  name for the record? I'm sorry.

         25                 MR. KORMAN: My name is Douglas
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          2  Korman. My company is called Trike Taxi,

          3  Incorporated. I honestly, from my heart, I want to

          4  thank you because I have observed over a period of

          5  time, now and different meetings, that you have a

          6  very fair and balanced view of things, and you bring

          7  that balance to the discussion, and I think that's

          8  what we need to really come to something that's

          9  going to work and be fair.

         10                 I would like to enter into the record

         11  what I brought as a document of testimony, but prior

         12  to reading what I have here, I do want to express my

         13  sorrow, and it's not so much my sorrow that I'm in

         14  the potential going out of business club with James

         15  Muessig here, but I do want to say that my dad, he

         16  worked for the City all his life, he left a strong

         17  impression on me, even though he died when I was

         18  only 12, he taught me right from wrong, and the

         19  value of morality and honesty. And knowing that he

         20  worked for the City and loved the City all his life,

         21  I cannot help but to look back and say what a sorrow

         22  it is that I actually have to withstand the scrutiny

         23  of people who have come before this Committee and

         24  misrepresented the truth in a number of ways. These

         25  are public officials, I'm a little bit in shock. And
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          2  you know, to reiterate a little bit of what James

          3  said, they've come here continuously and made false

          4  statements about his vehicle. Well, they've made a

          5  lot of false statements about pedicabs and the inner

          6  workings of this industry, how would they really

          7  know, other than just making an objective

          8  observation from a distance?

          9                 There has not been the proper kind of

         10  engaging up until recently with us, and now me,

         11  being somebody who has a vehicle that's been

         12  remanufactured to handle the streets of New York,

         13  and still abide by the law requiring no more than

         14  one horsepower, I've never been involved with

         15  anything but a horsepower on my pedicab. My pedicab

         16  was originally a product of a grant from the New

         17  York State Energy Research and Development Authority

         18  for the very purpose that I am using this vehicle,

         19  to bring it into the traffic flow of urban areas, to

         20  help ease congestion and get people who cannot get

         21  around as easy in a way that is not polluting and is

         22  safe.

         23                 And what I wanted to also touch upon

         24  is the fact that we never got involved in operating

         25  our pedicab until that November in 2002, when the

                                                            161

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  law went into effect, and we have never operated our

          3  pedicab without having insurance as an

          4  electric-assisted pedicab.

          5                 So, we've tried to be responsible.

          6  I've made a fairly consistent attempt to organize

          7  drivers, and I can stand before you and tell you in

          8  all honesty, we're united as an industry, but as a

          9  drivers association, we failed miserably. And the

         10  reason we failed was not because of personality

         11  conflicts between our views of this industry, but

         12  more so the fact that we are not regulated, so,

         13  therefore, some people driving don't take what we're

         14  doing as serious as they should. And they don't make

         15  us look good, and they're not willing to show up

         16  properly at meetings, and maybe in some cases they

         17  feel they don't have anything to lose, but I will

         18  say to you that there's been a lot of good effort by

         19  a lot of people to formulate rules.

         20                 I worked with Shoshannah on

         21  formulating driver courtesy rules and a code of

         22  conduct for pedicab drivers that I would like to

         23  submit at another time to you. I don't have that

         24  today. I think you might be impressed with how

         25  responsible the drivers have tried to be to set the
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          2  right foot and put on the right image and turn our

          3  wheels properly.

          4                 And I will tell you, with all

          5  earnestness, I cannot imagine how the police or the

          6  DCA or anybody is going to give a fair and objective

          7  analysis and statistics of our industry from a real

          8  truthful, critical standpoint, when you have the

          9  industry amuck right now. If we had regulation in

         10  place and people knew that they were going to pay

         11  dearly their errors, or that they were maybe being

         12  watched a little more, or whatever, we would then be

         13  able to make a fair analysis of the behavior of

         14  drivers who have a pedicab license and, you know,

         15  fines to deal with if they don't behave.

         16                 So, you're going to see a situation

         17  now on the streets that has many of us upset. We

         18  don't like what we see either. That's why we banded

         19  together. And some of those jokers out there,

         20  they're not going to come here before you. We are.

         21  And we may be smaller in numbers, but we're more

         22  serious about this business and the future of it,

         23  and I'd like to take the opportunity to share with

         24  you why, and I've spoken to Council Member Gennaro

         25  privately at another occasion, I met with him at
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          2  John Liu at the Solar One Center on the east side

          3  there, Stuyvesant Cove, and I tried to approach him

          4  with some sensibility. I had my pedicab there. I

          5  offered to take him a ride, I ended up taking Peter

          6  Pastor for a ride, he was very impressed.

          7                 What I tried to address to him was

          8  the fact that an electric pedicab is not a

          9  motorcycle. It may have a motor in it to help aid

         10  the driver but none of us here really want to see

         11  motorcycle pedicabs. It's not what we're into. And

         12  I, for one, drove pedicabs years ago, with just five

         13  speeds. It was very hard for me. I have a disability

         14  with my back, I have over 20-years record as an

         15  outpatient at the Hospital for Joint Diseases, so my

         16  situation is bonafide, I can actually not walk too

         17  far or stand for too long. So, there is a tremendous

         18  value for people with a disability to being able to

         19  get around like this, and I can't imagine how the

         20  Americans With Disabilities Act would allow the City

         21  of New York to put me out of business. You know? You

         22  want to call up my electric wheelchair for hire,

         23  whatever, I don't really care.

         24                 New pedicab regulations, a cleaner

         25  break for a greener New York City. We have recently
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          2  reviewed the most current --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Korman, this

          4  is single-spaced three pages, and we were supposed

          5  to be out of the room a half hour ago.

          6                 MR. KORMAN: Well, I can't help it. So

          7  many people spoke.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm just trying

          9  to --

         10                 MR. KORMAN: I mean, in all fairness.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I want to be

         12  fair.

         13                 MR. KORMAN: Mr Muessig had a whole

         14  couple of hours last meeting and I got nothing.  I

         15  got very little anyway.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm just asking

         17  you to try to not read every word but try to

         18  summarize it.

         19                 MR. KORMAN: Okay.  I'll summarize it,

         20  if you desire, sir.  Okay.  You know, you're right.

         21  Thank you for the correction.  I don't really want

         22  to read it. My eyes are sore.  I actually was up

         23  many, many hours to prepare this for you folks today

         24  and it is so important that I can't even read too

         25  well.
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          2                 I just want to say that initially

          3  what I was looking to express here was that we have

          4  problems with 75-A and 331-A, and I agree with what

          5  a lot of what was spoken, but there is the ability

          6  to compromise on a lot of issues.  When it really

          7  comes down to it, from where I stand, I personally

          8  don't think the motor is an issue of compromise.

          9  And I'll tell you really why, if you want some real

         10  candid common sense.

         11                 I have ten years on the road now in a

         12  pedicab.  I'm one of the most travelled pedicab

         13  drivers in New York City.  In that course of that

         14  ten years, I have never had any accident or an

         15  infraction on a pedicab.  I have a perfect driving

         16  record that was only slightly altered only a few

         17  weeks ago.  Okay, I've never had a claim made to my

         18  insurance company on my pedicab.

         19                 A few weeks ago, a taxi driver did

         20  not caution their passenger and the door got thrown

         21  open in front of my pedicab when they were five feet

         22  from the curb and the driver actually tried to blame

         23  me, and, fortunately, no one was hurt, but my

         24  pedicab got wheel damage.

         25                 So, there is a risk for us and I will
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          2  tell you truthfully, and not to bash the taxi

          3  industry, actually my bigger risk is with taxis

          4  because they can drive very erratically.  The

          5  biggest problem out there is being doored.

          6                 So, to move on from that, I needed to

          7  tell you to help you understand how experienced I am

          8  and that I am an expert in my field.  I build these

          9  vehicles myself and they are very strong and

         10  durable. I have three disc brakes throughout the

         11  vehicle, so it can stop on a dime.

         12                 Now, what I want to touch upon is the

         13  legislative issue.  Either the government defines

         14  what a bicycle is under the law or somebody has a

         15  different interpretation of it.  The law has to be

         16  evenly applied.

         17                 Now, if Congress went to the effort

         18  of coming up with an electric bicycle and tricycle

         19  law, you would have to surmise there was some good

         20  reasoning behind it for it to have been passed and

         21  signed by President Bush.

         22                 Now, if you look into the study of

         23  the geneses of the bill, you will find that it was

         24  purposely intended to aid aging people or people who

         25  were not able to pedal as far as well as someone

                                                            167

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  else.  So, really what you are suggesting by banning

          3  what the Federal Government and the State Government

          4  approves as a bicycle, this is the circumstance.

          5                 You will have your non-assisted

          6  pedicab with hundreds of pounds of people and a guy

          7  will come by you with a bicycle with that same one

          8  horsepower.  Now, honestly, who needs that assist

          9  more, him or me?   I would have to say me.

         10  Particularly if I had been working all day and I'm

         11  going up hill and I have a disability, which I do,

         12  or maybe I don't, I don't want to develop a

         13  disability.  That's a whole other issue that I wrote

         14  in here about. You know, some pedicab drivers have

         15  not treated themselves right.  They have

         16  over-exerted themselves because they didn't know

         17  when to take a break or to take a day off. They

         18  maybe got a little greedy and they wanted to keep

         19  making money.  I think there was a need sometimes

         20  for people to say, I've got to put it down for a

         21  bit. And so I am fearful that there are people that

         22  are less able, less capable that will develop

         23  injuries to their knees and their backs. I mean, you

         24  just had somebody testify he stopped riding because

         25  he developed back problems.
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          2                 So, there is a validity here, the

          3  taxi lobby is truly concerned about safety on our

          4  part, okay?  They cannot exclude from the equation

          5  the need to protect people from suffering some kind

          6  of an occupational injury. If somebody is young and

          7  they can do this when they are young, what are we

          8  saying there?  That the job is just something that

          9  is for those -- that's age discrimination.  You

         10  know, just for young people, and somebody cannot

         11  even think about doing it as many years as I have?

         12  I don't think that's right, and I think you would

         13  end up having a pool of less-experienced drivers,

         14  and I'm troubled to see too many people, because

         15  this isn't regulated, feeling comfortable going in

         16  and out of the business and you don't know if they

         17  are staying, coming or going, yet we still have a

         18  stock of old pros that are doing it for years.

         19            So, we have to accommodate the safety of

         20  the driver, whether it's the equipment or it's the

         21  manner in which he is trained.  You have what is

         22  discussed here as some untrained drivers out there,

         23  operating without insurance.  We are not with them

         24  sir. We don't want what they offer.

         25                 And as far as trying to limit our
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          2  business as a form of transportation, just because

          3  somebody else says, well we want to burn up some

          4  more gas and we're going to take that ride.  Most of

          5  our customers, they take us because they want the

          6  special kind of ride that we give them.  They are

          7  not concerned sometimes about getting somewhere in a

          8  hurry.  They want to have their pleasure cruise with

          9  us.  They are not going to get into an enclosed cab

         10  with a driver who may not even want to talk to them.

         11                 We show them a very nice side of New

         12  York and obviously the Mayor and others in the

         13  Administration have a certain value for that good

         14  thing that we do offer.  And I think there is a lot

         15  to discuss about the issues of traveling on a street

         16  that we should have free access to drive through.

         17  We are not having free access in certain places.

         18  And I am not talking about guys who may be

         19  disrespectful to the theatre owners, that we can't

         20  control or disrespectful to the hotel owners that we

         21  can't control.  I've tried to be an influence and

         22  try to break up arguments and scenes in front of

         23  hotels or whatever, but you can't see everything,

         24  you can't be everywhere.

         25                 But, if you look at these hotels, the
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          2  people who are driving the limos have been working

          3  with those hotels for years. They don't want us

          4  there, in some places. They get gratuities for

          5  taking guests, they don't want us there.  But they

          6  double park.  Go to the Waldorf Astoria any night,

          7  you'll see double- parked limos clogging up traffic

          8  there.  It's unfair to hear people say they we are

          9  the traffic problem.  The little old pedicab.

         10                 I mean we are just so insignificant

         11  of a bleep that now appeared on the radar screen

         12  because of our numbers rising. The same responsible

         13  people that were here in the beginning are still

         14  here.  We want the same things and we feel

         15  absolutely that unquestionably an assist, an

         16  electric assist within the limits of the law will

         17  elongate the drivers career.  It will limit the

         18  injuries to the driver. And a very important thing

         19  that has not been said, is that the assist of the

         20  electric motor allows the driver to stay better in

         21  the flow of traffic.  That's for sure.

         22                 So I have driven over the 59th Street

         23  bridge bike lane for years now without any problems.

         24    I do not take people over the bridge, not because

         25  I don't think I could do it safely, it strains my
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          2  motor.  I don't want to hurt my motor.  So as far as

          3  I am concerned, I couldn't care about them saying

          4  you can't take pedicabs over the bridge with people.

          5    It's probably better because the inclines are

          6  steep at each end usually.

          7                 But to limit us from giving people

          8  pleasure cruises through Central Park, I am one of

          9  the few people that goes to the north end of the

         10  park and takes people through Harlem.  I did it last

         11  weekend and the people were absolutely in love with

         12  the ride. They demanded my card, they want to send

         13  people, they want to come back again.  And again, we

         14  offer something that the taxi industry can't and how

         15  can they even honestly say that we are competing

         16  with them, when we have to charge more than they do

         17  with the overhead that we have, the insurance, the

         18  storage, the maintenance, the equipment and now

         19  regulation and licensing and everything else.  We

         20  don't work as many hours sometimes as they do.

         21                 So, I would be available to you folks

         22  any time in the future to share with you more of my

         23  experience and the logic of my reasoning about why

         24  electric assisted pedicabs are good for New York.

         25  Honestly, taxi lobby doesn't have to worry about us.
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          2                 Once we have regulation that is fair

          3  and as a uniform conduct and we have workshops for

          4  training people that are sanctioned by the City and

          5  we have taxi pedicab stands, like a taxi stand has

          6  so the drivers don't have to be poaching on the taxi

          7  line.  When we have a certain facility given to us,

          8  that we don't have now, you'll see great results.

          9  We are treated like orphans, that are shooed away

         10  from every corner.  We are given no where to stand.

         11  We can park our cabs nowhere.  We can't even put

         12  them on the sidewalk to lock them up.  They want to

         13  confiscate them.

         14                 I think also that it is absolutely

         15  obscene while this Administration and this City

         16  Council is seriously engaging this industry to

         17  regulate it, that we have a police department in the

         18  background finding reasons to confiscate our

         19  pedicabs that are really like old reasons.  It's

         20  already established here in this Committee by the

         21  Consumer Affairs Commissioner that we are not going

         22  to be regulated under the vendor laws.

         23                 Yet we in the last week have had 15

         24  confiscations for vending without a license.  What

         25  is that punitive action about? Why are we suffering
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          2  that way when we are trying to be forthright and

          3  honest and open in coming to you. We've really been

          4  open, very open about our business.  We haven't, you

          5  know, been holding back. I came here like others.

          6  Yes we have electric pedicabs.  Let's talk about it

          7  rationally instead of having all this mud thrown at

          8  me by people who are trying to protect their

          9  monopoly, I mean it's absurd.  I agree, they have

         10  the right to be able to offer to their drivers a

         11  safe vehicle, an honest day's wage and I'd like to

         12  see them get an honest day's wage.

         13                 Because I've got friends that are

         14  taxi drivers and they are miserable.  They don't get

         15  an honest day's wage.  They tell me they have to

         16  work too many hours to make their money. Because of

         17  the system, the way it is set up, with what was

         18  explained, the guys got to work and slave to pay his

         19  medallion off that's inflated.

         20                 We don't really want this industry

         21  medallionized. We don't want to go that route.  And

         22  if there is any cap that is put on this industry,

         23  the formula has got to be really thought-out.

         24  Because the idea that you can't drop people in the

         25  midtown business district is absurd. That's where
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          2  they want to do.  This business developed as a

          3  downtown business because that where it budded from,

          4  a mustard seed.  But it took legs or it took it's

          5  wheels uptown where the real action was.  What's so

          6  wrong with that.

          7                 We drive people from the theaters

          8  every night.  If we were more respectful as a group

          9  to the theaters, they would probably see the value

         10  of us taking such good care of their theater-goers,

         11  and solving the problem.  They are stranded.  There

         12  are not enough ways for them to  get around.  I

         13  don't want to say there is not enough cabs, because

         14  as far as I'm concerned I'm choking from it.  There

         15  is too many cabs.  There is not enough alternatives

         16  and the minuscule amount of hybrids is ridiculous to

         17  talk about at this stage.  When you look at nothing

         18  but Crown Victoria's, they get like 15 miles to a

         19  gallon in 2007 almost.  I mean it's absurd that this

         20  ever happened.

         21                 So, to stand up against the "little

         22  pedicab that could", is shameful. They should be

         23  embarrassed that they want to be that greedy.  What

         24  are they trying to protect?  They have got it

         25  already.  They have got it in large measure and I
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          2  think with the behavioral change of drivers, and a

          3  certain respect, like I tell guys every night and

          4  people in this room know it, the cop told you, don't

          5  go there.  Don't insult and disrespect that officer

          6  because his superior is watching him and he wants to

          7  carry out his job.

          8                 Now, some of these guys will just

          9  keep doing the thing the wrong way and guess what.

         10  We all suffer for it because they say, "get out of

         11  here", and we all got to go. I don't want that.  I

         12  want to be treated with respect.  I want to treat

         13  those civil servants with respect, but there has to

         14  be a reasonable shaping and outline of what is

         15  really sane for this business or a lot of people are

         16  just going to leave and what kind of quality pedicab

         17  business are you going to have here.  It's going to

         18  be run a- muck.  You know, we need our motors.  They

         19  are not motor vehicles.

         20                 The guy listening to Councilman

         21  Gennaro saying that motor vehicles making hail

         22  fares.  That's absurd.  Most of my rides are people

         23  who come up to me.  I bark a little, but most people

         24  are my best rides are people that hail me and come

         25  up to me. And they want this kind of ride because
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          2  they don't want to go on a horse and carriage ride.

          3  They don't want to smell the horse or whatever the

          4  reason is. Or they don't want to get cooped up in a

          5  cab.

          6                 We go year round.  I rescue people

          7  that cannot get a cab in the rain and the snow.

          8  They cannot get a cab.  There are not enough cabs

          9  when rush hour comes because they are taking them

         10  back to their garages.

         11                 Everybody knows that.  We solve a

         12  transportation problem.  If you look into the

         13  federal laws, there is a lot more than I am hanging

         14  my hat on than HR 727 and Public Law 109- 17. We're

         15  talking about HR 6 and HR 3.  These are

         16  environmental impact Federal Statues that are being

         17  brought on- line to convert our cities and this City

         18  in particular has been in that money pot, the $71

         19  million dollars that Mayor Bloomberg was touting

         20  that he is going to spend on infrastructure that the

         21  federal government has giving him.  That's how come

         22  we have a bike lane.  But what do they want to do?

         23  They want to try to kick us off the bike way.

         24                 So, you know, it's not just all about

         25  making everything look pretty.  It's got to work.
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          2  And so we need more accommodation for our bikes.

          3  I'm pleased to see that the bike lanes are wider.

          4  I'd like to see more bike lights that signal us

          5  properly and things like that.  A more bicycle

          6  culture, if you will on this City would make it a

          7  more livable City.  It would be better for

          8  everybody.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Korman.

         11                 With that, there is no other

         12  testimony being presented today.  Council Member

         13  Brewer did you want to make a statement?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I was just

         15  glad to be here. Thank you and to just say that I am

         16  supportive of the industry.  I certainly feel that

         17  there needs to be regulation.  And I think some of

         18  the questions on what streets should pedicabs and

         19  other kinds of bikes operate on and certainly when

         20  we are talking about 750 watts we have to be careful

         21  that it doesn't get to be more power.

         22                 So, I think there are lots of issues

         23  to be addressed.  Whether it's somebody who is in

         24  Manhattan every single evening going to different

         25  events, trying to get around, and seeing other
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          2  people trying to do the same, as a staunch supporter

          3  of bicycles in general, I do think this is an

          4  industry that has a lot of courage, a lot of

          5  gumption and if properly regulated would be an asset

          6  to midtown.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  There is a lot

          9  that I would want to say at this time, but since we

         10  are supposed to be out of this room I really can't

         11  say too much.  Other than, I want to thank all the

         12  people who came to the Hearing today.  I hope we all

         13  learned a little something about this industry and

         14  regulation.  I hope that we can quickly get together

         15  and come to some resolution on all of the issues

         16  that were presented today.

         17                 I want to thank again my staff, my

         18  Legislative Counsel, my Policy Analyst, Thomas

         19  Ferrugia and Brian Sogol for fielding all of the

         20  issues so that we could have a proper Hearing today

         21  and all of the people who participated in this

         22  Hearing. Clearly, we are close to some resolution,

         23  but we have to make sure that the resolution is

         24  equitable for all parties involved and give all

         25  parties involved an opportunity to feel that they
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          2  have presented their positions, that they have

          3  articulated their needs and that their needs have

          4  been heard.  I'll try to do that as fair and even-

          5  handed as possible.  I will continue to make every

          6  effort to drive this home and develop some

          7  legislation quickly that will deal with the fact

          8  that in the best City in the world we should be able

          9  to come up with solutions to our problems.

         10                 So, with that I want to thank all of

         11  you for being here and call the Hearing closed.

         12                 (The following written testimony was

         13  read into the record.)

         14

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Cornelius Byrne

         18  547 West 37th Street

         19

         20  December 11, 2006

         21

         22                 My name is Cornelius Bryne and I have

         23  been in the Horse and Carriage Business for

         24  approximately 40 years. I thank you in advance for

         25  holding this hearing. I am extremely hopeful, with
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          2  your leadership, the City will soon have a law that

          3  will regulate the Pedicab Industry. This law is

          4  crucial for two reasons. The first reason is for

          5  fairness. The second and more importantly, involve

          6  safety.

          7                 I am writing to complain about

          8  pedicabs flooding and congesting the streets of New

          9  York.

         10                 This business started without the

         11  prior approval of any city official or agency and

         12  has continued to expand without evaluation or

         13  regulation of any sort. This is getting out of hand

         14  and it is certainly time to have the Council and the

         15  Mayor's office to act.

         16                 Licensed businesses are strictly

         17  overseen in New York City. Operators of taxicabs and

         18  horse drawn carriages find it almost impossible to

         19  not be in violation of something when inspected,

         20  while pedicab operators find it advantageous to

         21  operate with a total lack of inspection.

         22                 Recently the city auctioned taxi

         23  medallions and investors have spent in the area of

         24  $600,000 to be in this business, probably indebting

         25  themselves for life. How can the city permit these
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          2  taxi owners to loose fares to a guy with a bicycle?

          3  The same law that prohibits private cars from

          4  soliciting taxicab fares should apply to pedicabs,

          5  but that's not what is going on. Pedicab drivers

          6  charge $20 to $50 for each ride and are earning just

          7  as much, if not more than medallioned New York City

          8  cabs. Also, they get the short ride fares that are

          9  the most desirable rides for taxi operators, what a

         10  loss here!

         11                 The pedicabs are not safe enough to

         12  be on the streets of New York but if a decision is

         13  made to let them remain then they should be

         14  obligated to pay for a city pedicab medallion.

         15                 The carriage drivers in Central Park

         16  who are licensed and heavily regulated, cannot even

         17  move away from pickup stands. Pedicab drivers

         18  allowed to park anywhere, surround their stands to

         19  meet the customers first. They charge whatever they

         20  want, once again taking advantage of the lack of any

         21  regulation. It is imperative to keep these pedicabs

         22  out of the Parks but especially away from Central

         23  Park South. The potential of very dangerous

         24  accidents involving horses and bikes are numerous.

         25  It is unsafe but also unfair for the Carriage
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          2  Industry, which relies on this location for nearly

          3  almost all of its customers.

          4                 The licensed, regulated and

          5  responsible carriage driver has not been granted a

          6  much-needed increase by the city council for 18

          7  years.  What hasn't changed in 18 years? Yet the

          8  carriage driver finds himself in competition with an

          9  unlicensed, unregulated pedicab driver charging what

         10  he wants and going where he wants.

         11                 In the event that pedicabs remain,

         12  they must pass road safety inspections and the

         13  drivers must be identified and regulated with

         14  licenses. For security and safety reasons, the city

         15  needs to know who is here operating these things.

         16  The idea of letting them walk in for nothing and do

         17  what taxicabs and horse drawn cabs is wrong and must

         18  be addressed.

         19                 Thank you for reading my statement

         20  and I appreciate that hearings will be heard

         21  concerning this issue.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 4:46 p.m.)

         24

         25

                                                            183

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 11th day of December 2006.
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         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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